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Cover Story
Innovation is a powerful lever 
to address the challenges of a 
growing world. It allows us to
use resources more efficiently, 
produce more with less and deliver 
better methodologies to help 
company drive growth and improve
quality of life.

Investing in innovation is an 
essential ingredient of Rupali’s 
corporate philosophy and it comes 
in many forms -- from traditional
R&D to new products, markets and 
business models.

At Rupali, we are up for the 
challenge, ready to adopt and 
deploy a modern approach
to innovation that will deliver both 
value and meaningful solutions.
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To consistently maintain the Company’s leading 
status of producing high quality products being first 
preference of our customers. Also to maintain the 
standards of performance excellence with long term 
plans of expansion and diversification.

Our Vision

Innovation doesn’t 
come from organized 
plans. It comes from 
our preparedness to
deal with the 
uncertainty of the 
future.
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To develop the Company on sound technical 
and financial footings with better productivity, 
excellence in quality and operational efficiencies 
at lower operating costs by utilizing blend of high 
professionalism.

To accomplish targeted results through increased 
earnings for maximum benefit to the Company 
stakeholders.

To be an equal opportunity employer taking utmost 
care of the employees for their career progression 
with better reward and recognition of their abilities 
and performance.

To fulfill general obligations towards the society, 
particularly safety, security and other environmental 
protections.

Our Mission
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•	 An Organization with well disciplined and 
professionally managed operational and 
administrative functions

•	 Pioneering status in Polyester Fiber 
manufacturing

•	 High quality manufacturing standards 

•	 Our products enjoy first preference of 
downstream users

•	 Performance excellence in all areas of 
operations

•	 Integrity in all our dealings based on 
commitments

•	 Very sound internal controls and highly 
disciplined financial management

• 	 An excellent image and repute amongst
	 corporate sector of the country and 

worldwide recognition

Our Core Values

•	 High importance to stakeholders with 
historical background of regular dividend 
payouts to shareholders when Company 
in profits
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Company Profile
RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED was incorporated at 
Karachi in May 1980 as a Public Limited Company and 
is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (formerly 
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges). It 
owns and operates composite facilities to manufacture 
Polyester Staple Fiber and Polyester Filament Yarn. It 
produces quality products by using latest technology 
and best quality of raw materials. The Company has 
the privilege of being one of the pioneers in Pakistan 
for manufacture of Staple Fiber of highest quality. 
Since its inception, the Company has been growing 
steadily through expansion and diversified operations. 
The assets of the Company have increased to Rs. 
6,015 million from the initial capital outlay of Rs.150 
million.

The Company   has a Polymerization Unit with 
a capacity of 105 metric tons per day, Polyester 
Filament Yarn capacity of 30 metric tons per day and 
a Polyester Staple Fiber capacity of 65 metric tons per 
day. The Company has put up an additional POY line 
to increase production. The various products of Rupali 
are in fact import substitution as these were previously 
imported from Japan, Indonesia, Taiwan and Korea. 
Now the Company is importing the basic raw materials 
only and through value addition is producing the 
highest quality products locally.

Since inception, the philosophy of the Company’s 
management is to grow on the strength of quality and 
reliability. To achieve this objective, it is maintaining 
a well equipped Research & Development Centre 
for standard maintenance, innovative improvements 
in its products and achieving economies in production 
techniques without compromising on standard and 
quality of products. Products and services offered by 
the Company are acknowledged by the customers 
as quality and reliable products and are the first 
preference of customers.

The Company gives high priority to customers’ 
satisfaction, tries to maintain uninterrupted supply 
of its products and provides after sales services, 
technical support for trouble shooting.

AL HAMDO LILLAH, the Company enjoys high prestige 
and reputation in the business community, banks, 
financial institutions and customers. It is also amongst 
major contributors to the national exchequer.
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Particulars	  UOM	 2019	 2018	  2017	 2016

Profit and Loss Account	

Sales - Net	 Rs. in thousand	 9,053,741	 6,044,111	 5,025,401	 4,890,041

Cost of sales 	 Rs. in thousand	 8,562,629	 5,680,917	 4,887,698	 4,969,175

Gross Profit 	 Rs. in thousand	 491,112	 363,194	 137,703	 (79,134)

Operating profit	 Rs. in thousand	 342,664	 234,689	 (9,384)	 (135,807)

Profit before tax 	 Rs. in thousand	 174,302	 115,822	 (123,064)	 (270,919)

Profit after tax 	 Rs. in thousand	 54,975	 64,553	 (120,083)	 (333,478)

Income tax - current 	 Rs. in thousand	 95,670	 60,479	 43,937	 48,900

- prior years 	 Rs. in thousand	 574	 266	 (35,369)	 -

- deferred 	 Rs. in thousand	 23,083	 (9,477)	 (11,549)	 13,659

Dividend

Cash dividend	 Rs. in thousand	 34,069	 34,069	 -	 -

Cash dividend rate	 Percentage	 10	 10	 -	 -

Balance Sheet

Share capital	 Rs. in thousand	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685

Reserves 	 Rs. in thousand	 2,078,613	 2,060,942	 1,996,389	 1,735,615

Shareholders equity 	 Rs. in thousand	 2,419,298	 2,401,627	 2,337,074	 1,032,799

No. of ordinary shares 	 Numbers	 34,068,514	 34,068,514	 34,068,514	 34,068,514

Non-Current liabilities 	 Rs. in thousand	 539,687	 554,584	 592,176	 649,133

Current liabilities 	 Rs. in thousand	 3,055,610	 2,939,533	 2,799,721	 2,704,858

Property, Plant and Equipment 	 Rs. in thousand	 3,295,511	 3,201,449	 2,971,353	 1,637,969

Capital work-in-progress 	 Rs. in thousand	 64,020	 234,019	 7,972	 32,286

Long term investments/loans/deposits 	 Rs. in thousand	 4,396	 4,396	 4,396	 4,361

Current assets 	 Rs. in thousand	 2,252,188	 2,252,399	 2,353,222	 2,344,460

Net current assets 	 Rs. in thousand	 (803,422)	 (687,134)	 (446,499)	 (360,398)

Total liabilities 	 Rs. in thousand	 6,014,595	 5,895,744	 5,728,971	 4,386,790

Total Assets 	 Rs. in thousand	 6,014,595	 5,895,744	 5,728,971	 4,386,790

Ratio Analysis

Gross profit 	 Percentage	 5.42	 6.01	 2.74	 (1.62)

Net profit 	 Percentage	 0.61	 1.07	 (2.39)	 (6.82)

Inventory turnover 	 Times	 10	 7	 8	 8

Cash dividend per share 	 Rupees	 1	 1	 -	 -

Debt : equity ratio		  4 : 96	 6 : 94	 7 : 93	 19 : 81

Break-up value per share 	 Rupees	 71.01	 70.49	 68.60	 30.32

Market value per share at the end of the year	 Rupees	 27.55	 29.50	 19.25	 8.98

Production volume

Production capacity 	 M. Tons	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100

Production achieved 	 M. Tons	 38,495	 31,578	 31,181	 31,951

Capacity utilization 	 Percentage	 174	 143	 141	 145

Employees 	 Numbers	 1,468	 1,323	 1,230	 1,198

Financial Highlights
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	 2015	 2014	 2013	 2012

	

	4,841,940	 5,952,659	 6,091,802	 6,390,922

	4,982,459	 6,219,222	 6,317,322	 6,175,904

	(140,519)	 (266,563)	 (225,520)	 215,018

	(140,519)	 (361,421)	 (275,782)	 125,266

	 (401,098)	 (479,858)	 (357,747)	 81,750

	(384,447)	 (403,284)	 (436,600)	 20,939

	 -	 -	 30,459	 63,909

	 -	 (30,459)	 565	 (33,233)

	 (16,651)	 (46,115)	 47,829	 30,135

		

	 -	 -	 -	 34,068

	 -	 -	 -	 10

	

	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685

	1,735,615	 1,735,615	 1,735,615	 1,735,615

	1,366,277	 1,462,789	 1,866,073	 2,335,957

	34,068,514	 34,068,514	 34,068,514	 34,068,514

	 658,917	 516,553	 411,166	 365,068

	2,263,206	 2,075,711	 1,393,461	 1,400,079

	1,729,858	 1,630,402	 1,578,010	 1,311,704

	 17,945	 98,324	 37,110	 226,909

	 4,361	 4,361	 4,281	 4,281

	2,229,181	 2,420,290	 2,088,409	 2,558,210

	 (34,025)	 344,579	 694,948	 1,158,131

	4,288,400	 4,055,053	 3,670,700	 4,101,104

	4,288,400	 4,055,053	 3,670,700	 4,101,104

	

	

	 (2.90)	 (4.47)	 (3.70)	 3.36

	 (7.94)	 (6.77)	 (7.17)	 0.33

	 6	 7	 6	 4

	 -	 -	 -	 1.00

	 17 : 83	 9 : 91	 0 : 100	 0 : 100

	 40.03	 42.94	 54.77	 68.40

	 12.00	 17.10	 23.30	 25.66

	

	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100

	 26,859	 28,491	 30,855	 34,957

	 121	 129	 140	 158

	 1,251	 968	 1,001	 1,238
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Graphical Presentation

Shareholders Equity
(Rs. in Million)

Financial Position  2019
(Rs. in Million)
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Chairman’s Review
Review Report by the Chairman on Board’s overall 
performance under section 192 of the Companies Act, 
2017:

I am happy to report that the Company’s financial 
position has been substantially strengthened during 
the financial year 2019.  The overall performance of 
the Company for FY 2019 has been described in detail 
in the Directors’ Report.  The success of the Company 
in this period is primarily owed to the policy framework 
and guidelines of the Board as under:

1.	 The Company has well thought out vision, 
mission and values. The Board revisited the 
vision and mission statements.

2.	 The Board set annual targets for the Management 
in all key performance areas.

3.	 The Board provided directions and oversight to 
the Company’s business activities.

4.	 On the guidelines of the Board, the Management 
carried out refurbishing projects during the year.

5.	 The Board put in place transparent and robust 
system of governance, more specifically under 
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017.

6.	 The Board reviewed, discussed and approved 
business strategy, plan, budgets and financial 
statements and other reports including internal 
audit reports. It received clear agendas and 
supporting written material in sufficient time prior 
to board and committee meetings. The Board 
met frequently enough during the year.

7.	 The Board members offered the diversity 
and appropriate mix of independent and

		  non-executive directors including female director 
in compliance with the Listed Companies (Code 
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017.

Nooruddin Feerasta
Chairman

Lahore: 21 September 2019
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, 
we are pleased to welcome you to the thirty-ninth 
annual general meeting and present the annual report 
and the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 together with the 
auditors’ report.

Financial Results:
				    Rupees in thousand
Profit before taxation	 174,302
Taxation	 (119,327)
Profit after taxation	 54,975
Appropriations –
  proposed dividend @ 10%	 34,069
	 Rupees
Earnings per share – basic and diluted 	 1.61

Overview
The year 2019 has witnessed multiple achievements 
for the Company.  A number of key structural initiatives 
were taken to build strength across macro-economic 
parameters for sustainable growth in productivity 
and profitability.  This vision was based on the 
Government’s determination to improve industrial 
economic policies and revenue segments of the 
country. We are proud to say that our sales revenue 
increased by 50% to over Rs. 9 billion in FY 2019 from 
Rs. 6 billion in the last year. However, some policies 
have brought stagnancy in growth particularly in the 
second half of the year, among our downstream users. 
There were countrywide strikes by Traders and Textile 
manufacturers, protesting against the discontinuation 
of zero-rating and levy of Sales Tax. The zero-rated 
regime had become the foundation for all Economic 
policy frameworks and taxation structures for the 
domestic industry for many years. Recent changes 
within the Finance Act 2019, uprooted the Business 
foundation from a zero-rated regime to a 17 percent 
general sales tax regime on the entire value chain. 
Regulatory Duty on imported Polyester Filament Yarn 
(PFY), which was firstly reduced from 5% to 2.5% in 
the mini budget, was eventually brought down to zero 
in the 2019 Budget. Furthermore, the condition of CNIC 
required from unregistered suppliers was a matter 
of concern for the Traders. By virtue of these policy 
changes, doing business has become more difficult 
and competition with cheaper imports has distorted 
the level playing field in the PFY and PSF industry. 

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

We continue to be skeptical on the performance 
and growth of the market under a dumped imports 
industrial regime.

Your Company, which is a manufacturer of Polyester 
Filament Yarn (PFY) and Polyester Staple Fiber (PSF), 
was falling since 2011 under the ambit of zero-rated 
regime as prescribed in SRO. 1125(I)/2011 dated 
31.12.2011.  According to zero-rating, our major inputs 
and outputs were also zero-rated, however, some 
inputs like oil and lubricants, stores and spares and 
packing materials were taxable at standard rate. As 
a result, the input tax paid on goods always remained 
refundable throughout the year.

The new Government through the budget 2019 
rescinded SRO. 1125(I)/2011 dated 31.12.2011 
and as a result the zero-rating on local stage has 
also ended from July 2019 onward.  As our finished 
products are supplied locally, we shall supply our 
products with standard sales tax rate of 17 percent 
in the local markets.  Further, the import or local 
purchase of our major raw materials will also be liable 
to standard rate of sales tax. This will also include the 
supply of Electricity and Gas, which will be subject to 
the standard rate of sales tax from July 2019.  Due 
to all these changes, your Company will have to pay 
sales tax along with its monthly sales tax returns of 
each tax period rather than claiming any refund.

Further, as per Section 8B of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 
if the input tax adjustment for the tax period will be 
more than 90% of the output tax, the amount in excess 
of 90% of output tax, will not be adjusted in current 
month. Rather it will be carried forward to the following 
months for adjustment and if, it is not adjusted in 
subsequent twelve tax periods, a refund claim will be 
filed under Section 8B of the Act against said amount.  
This may hinder the Company’s cash flow in the shape 
of accumulating refunds.

Our performance is closely tied to the retail and micro 
textile manufacturers and any decline in demand 
from our end-consumers causes a decrease in our 
revenues. Furthermore, inflationary pressures and 
higher fuel and utilities costs constitute big components 
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in our manufacturing cost.  The Company’s short-term 
borrowings depend upon KIBOR, which exposes 
it to cash flow risk and interest rate risk. Extremely 
sharp hikes in the mark-up rates on bank borrowings 
significantly increased the Company’s financial 
charges in FY 2019.

The present government took steps to address 
economic imbalances. The exchange rate however, 
continued to depreciate, with a cumulative depreciation 
of 29 percent between July 2018 and July 2019. As 
a result of currency depreciation, raw material and 
fuel prices increased drastically throughout the year. 
At the time of issuance of this Report, the inflation 
reached 10.3 percent, this means the new fiscal year 
has kicked off with double-digit inflation. In response 
to higher inflationary pressures, the State Bank of 
Pakistan has increased the policy rate since July 2018 
by a cumulative 575 bps to 13.25 percent.

The hike in petroleum prices and the abnormal 
increase in electricity and gas tariffs are the measures 
that can be directly responsible for the increase in 
inflation. The impact of the new tax measures is in 
addition to the increase in price of imported inputs, 
including industrial raw material, which is the result of 
the depreciation in the rupee.

Inflation in Pakistan is highly sensitive to the 
international price of oil and RLNG and the prevailing 
exchange rate as oil and RLNG is a major input for 
electricity generation and in domestic transport of 
goods and services.  

Economic Challenges
Pakistan’s economy in spite of being in the stabilization 
phase has faced many challenges. While the external 

sector remains vulnerable, our fiscal consolidation 
remains elusive and inflation continues to rise. The 
government negotiated a support package with the 
International Monetary Fund, with certain conditions 
like energy price hikes, broadening tax net etc. thus, 
putting direct impact at the consumer end.

Taxation Structure
The government aims at reforming tax policy and tax 
administration to bring about a structure that generates 
sufficient revenue to meet the government’s needs. 
These measures could potentially ease the burden 
of high taxes that distorts economic incentives, 
restore fairness and equity in taxation, and promote 
international competitiveness.  However, any such 
policy that creates obstacles in industry growth needs 
to be reviewed in order to curb dumped imports.

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) has issued 
procedure for the textile and leather sectors to avail 
reduced sales tax rate by integrating their supplies 
with an online system. The FBR vide Finance Act, 
2019 inserted a new serial no. 66 for allowing sales 
tax rate at 15% for textile and leather sectors, with a 
condition that all points of sales of a unit should be 
connected with the FBR’s online system. However 
this is not a very pragmatic approach given the 
downstream market is comprised of fragmented users 
and the unorganized sector.

High Energy Tariffs
The cost of utilities has increased.  It will put additional 
financial burden on our manufacturing cost. The 
Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) vide its 
decision dated 16.09.2018 which was subsequently 
ratified by the Federal Cabinet on 27.09.2018 to supply 
gas to zero-rated export sector indigenous gas system 
as well as imported RLNG at the combined weighted 
average recoverable tariff of US$ 6.50 per MMBTU.  
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) in the 
bills for the month of June 2019 did not give the impact 
of weighted average tariff of US$ 6.50 per MMBTU to 
the zero-rated industrial consumers and issued bills 
on the basis of enhanced tariff rates despite the fact 
that the decision of the Federal Cabinet was upheld by 
the Honorable Lahore High Court through Order dated 
02.05.2019, giving direction to SNGPL that the benefit 
of the Federal Cabinet decision dated 27.09.2018 shall 
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not be denied to zero-rated consumers.  SNGPL in the 
bills for the month of June 2019 excluded the subsidy 
amount and also included late charges and penalties 
on arrears.  

The Company along with other zero-rated consumers 
filed writ petition in the Honorable Lahore High Court 
against the amounts charged by the SNGPL and the 
said Honorable Court vide Order dated 09.07.2019 
has directed that till next date of hearing that is 
30.09.2019, the bill shall continue to be paid @ US$ 
6.50 per MMBTU and the amount of arrears and late 
payment surcharge shall remain suspended with 
direction to petitioners to furnish a post-dated cheque 
for the amount of arrears and late payment surcharge 
to SNGPL.  It is adamant on the part of the SNGPL 
that despite the stay order granted by the Honorable 
Lahore High Court, till next date of hearing, the billing 
for the subsequent months of July and August 2019 
were charged with US$ 12.00 per MMBTU instead 
of US$ 6.50.  We have to pursue with SNGPL for 
correction of our final and ad-hoc bills.  

Dumped Imports
Federal Board of Revenue in FY 2017 had levied 
5% Regulatory Duty on PFY alongside traders and 
importers of PFY. Also the National Tariff Commission 
in the year 2017 had imposed anti-dumping duty on 
PFY from China and Malaysia ranging from 3.25% to 
11.35%. However, the largest manufacturer in China, 
namely Tongkun, which sells at the steepest dumped 
price, was imposed the lowest anti-dumping duty of 
3.25%. This imposition of duty was far less than what 
was imposed by Turkey and India and the injury margin 
remains higher than the sum of the anti-dumping 
duties and the Regulatory Duty. The anti-dumping 
duties have only been imposed on white PFY even 
though we also produce colored or dope dyed yarn. 
This caveat allows importers to bring in white PFY and 
declare it as dope dyed to evade duties. This poses a 
huge threat to the local PFY manufacturing industry, 
which provides more than 10,000 jobs. Furthermore, 
the anti-dumping duties have only been imposed on 
China and Malaysia, therefore giving suppliers from 
Vietnam the opportunity to increase their market 
share in Pakistan by selling PFY at dumped prices. 
Unfortunately the anti-dumping duties implemented 
in the final determination by the NTC has been 
ineffective due to repeated stays taken by petitioners 
in different courts throughout Pakistan. Because of 
these reasons, it was crucial that the Regulatory Duty 
remain at 5% to provide the domestic manufacturers 
a level playing field to compete. Additionally, lowering 
duty on POY could be grossly misused, especially to 
clear FDY polyester, which looks like POY and can be 
easily camouflaged and cleared as POY.

The PFY industry is working to reduce Pakistan’s 
reliance on imports to clothe our nation’s growing 
population and prevent the PKR from further 
devaluation. The Regulatory Duty of 5% combined 
with the anti-dumping duty had allowed the domestic 
units to increase their production to full capacity and 
re-start previously shutdown plants. Furthermore, 
Rupali Polyester Limited had commissioned a new 
filament plant adding 11,000 tons p.a. in November 
2018.  The withdrawal of the RD on PFY has once 
again jeopardized the growth opportunity for the 
domestic manufacturers of PFY.
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Local PFY Warranting Recognition
Synthetic sector has to be developed for import 
substitution rather than exports. In the current phase, 
Synthetic sector is not so critical for value added textile 
exports. Synthetic textiles and its blends will clothe 
the local population and provide import substitution by 
saving foreign currency required for imports. As such 
it has to be protected with import duty and Regulatory 
Duty for the local manufacturing industry to grow.

The minimum 5% RD will help in growth of domestic 
PFY industry by allowing it to recapture its share of 
domestic consumption from 33% in the year 2017 to 
55% in 2019 and over 75% in 2022. This will reduce 
the import bill as PFY imports will be reduced from 
140,000 ton/year to just 30,000 tons/year, thereby 
reducing the nation’s import bill by over $100M. 

As noted above, Synthetic sector in the current phase 
is not so critical for value added textile exports, 
therefore it has to be developed for import substitution 
rather than exports. World trade flow indicates that 
Synthetic portion (including Nylon, Acrylic, Viscose, 
Polyester etc.) is just 28% of the total Textile global 
exports of all kinds of Made ups, of which a mere 20% 
is Polyester. This 20% consists of both Polyester Fiber 
and Polyester Filament Yarn. So Polyester Filament 
Yarn in Global value added exports will only be 10% 
or less. Since 72% of global Textile exports of various 
categories (Apparel, Fabric, Made-ups etc.) is non 
Synthetic (mainly Cotton) and Pakistan has a Cotton 
Textile base, therefore for increasing textile exports 
the main focus of Textile Policy should be to increase 

Pakistan’s raw Cotton production from 12mn to 25mn 
bales and increase Cotton based Textile Garments.

In line with the policy to promote Synthetics import 
substitution, domestic PFY industry needs support by 
way of 11% import duty and 5% RD for the next 10 
years in view of minimal and ineffective anti-dumping 
duties imposed against China in Pakistan (compared 
to that imposed by Turkey/India). 

Anti-dumping Duty - Court cases 
There are scores of writ petitions filed in various 
Courts and Appellate Tribunals on one pretext or the 
other against the NTC’s composition or levy of anti-
dumping duty.  A petition was filed in June 2019 in 
the Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench in which the 
Court had suspended the Final Determination of the 
anti-dumping duties through an interim order dated 
9-07-2019.

The Company is defending its interest on the grounds 
of merits, as Court orders are available whereby 
several petitions of the yarn importers were dismissed. 
We got the stay orders vacated in many Petitions 
pending before the Lahore High Court at Rawalpindi. 
Every time we get the stay vacated, importers file 
new Petitions and get stay by way of concealment 
of full facts.  The PFY importers with their deceptive 
strategy are hurting the domestic PFY industry and 
encouraging dumped imports, which is injurious to the 
domestic PFY industry.

Raw Material Prices
Raw material prices remained volatile during the 
financial year 2018-19.  PTA price in August 2018 
was US$ 920 per M. Ton and in August 2019 rate was 
US$ 570 per M. Ton.  Similarly, MEG price which 
in August 2018 was US$ 940 M. Ton decreased to 
US$575 per M. Ton in August 2019.

Crude prices in the world market remained volatile. 
The tensions in the Middle East and West Asia would 
only add to the increase in oil prices. The trade war 
between China and the US has also greatly impacted 
the prices for raw materials.
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New FTA with China
Pakistan is hopeful to complete the negotiation on 
existing and new tariff lines under the second phase 
of Free Trade Agreement with China by mid of next 
year.  It is essential to protect the domestic industry in 
the agreement so that it does not suffer from the FTA.

OEKO-TEX Certification
Imported raw materials, advanced production 
equipment, and professional and technical talents 
contribute to produce high quality products. Our 
products (PFY) have passed the human-ecological 
requirements for OEKO-TEX® STANDARD 100. 
Renewal of certification for the year 2020 is in process.

Better now but Challenges ahead
Textile sector has started recovering since 2018. 
However, we highlight the long term challenges 
including i) emerging threats of PFY dumping, ii) 
regional competition in regard to lower wage rate 
and power tariffs iii) high mark up rates and, iv) harsh 
taxation regime. We expect the sector to continue its 
positive momentum in the medium-term however the 
rapid devaluation of Pak Rupee will serve as a big 
hindrance to growth.  Also textile sector needs to be 
incentivized to expand in the long run. Government 
needs to address the long-term challenges to the 
sector on a priority basis to lessen the domestic 
industry’s burden.

Sales Tax Refunds
Huge amount of sales tax refunds are pending with 
the Government.  The Federal Government, through 
Finance Supplementary (2nd amendment) Act, 2019, 
has given an option to the refund claimants to receive 
payment of refunds through Sales Tax Refund Bonds, 
which shall be valid for three years at a straight 
markup rate of 10%.  At the expiry of three years, the 
refund claimant again will go to FBR for its renewal 
or encashment, the process or outcome of which is 
not clear till date.  The Company has not preferred 
this option as the same may cause more liquidity 
issues including excessive financial costs against the 
Running Finances availed from Banks.

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 
is already pending before the Sui Northern Gas 

Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) as per the directions of 
the Honorable Lahore High Court. The industries 
have been opposing the GIDC Act, 2015.  Recently, 
GIDC Amendment Ordinance, 2019 has been 
promulgated which gives one time opportunity to 
consumers including zero-rated industry to pay 50% 
of the outstanding Cess arrears. However, owing to 
strong opposition of this Ordinance at political and 
business level, the Government has withdrawn GIDC 
Ordinance, 2019 and opted to pursue cases pending 
in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. This 
Ordinance was going to cause a huge financial burden 
on the already financially strapped textile industry 
therefore the Government should also withdraw the 
GIDC Act, 2015.

Sales Revenue and Profits
Sales revenue of PSF and PFY for the year 2019 
registered both a volumetric and a monetary increase. 
The volumetric increase was attributed to our new 
POY line which allowed us to produce different PFY 
products more cost effectively and the monetary 
increase was attributed to the wave of devaluations 
which increased the overall price of our products along 
with our feedstock. Our marketing campaign largely 
contributed to boost sales, however, downstream 
consumers sometimes showed reluctance to absorb 
more stock because of slow market response under 
stiff competition with imported cloth and fabrics.  In the 
last month of the FY 2019, sales experienced a surge 
because of the impending new taxation measures for 
the unregistered traders that came into effect 1 July 
2019.

Sale revenues for the year ended 30 June 2019 
increased to Rs.9,053.74 million from Rs.6,044.11 
million in the FY 2018. Gross profit increased to 
Rs.491.11 million from gross profit of Rs.363.19 million 
in FY 2018. Operating profit was Rs.342.66 million 
against operating profit of Rs.234.69 million in last 
year.  Finance cost increased to Rs.168.36 million from 
Rs.118.87 million mainly because of higher interest 
rates.  We earned a profit before tax of Rs.174.30 
million against profit before tax of Rs.115.82 million in 
FY 2018.  After tax profit remained to Rs.54.98 million 
in FY 2019 against Rs.64.55 million in FY 2018 due to 
increased taxes.
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Future Outlook
The abnormal rise in Gas/RLNG and electricity prices 
and the mark-up rates on borrowings will defeat 
other cost cutting initiatives and it is feared that the 
production cost of our products will not be able to 
fetch any margins because of competitive market 
prices which are relatively lower. We have to severally 
reduce our product rates at the cost of our margins.  
The GIDC arrears by virtue of GIDC Act, 2015 will 
be a huge financial burden to bear by the domestic 
industry.  

Growth is projected to decelerate in FY19 and FY20, as 
the government tightens fiscal and monetary policies. 
Together with the macro-economic adjustments, there 
is an urgent need to implement structural reforms to 
support industrial growth. Reforms to put the country 
on a stable growth path include increased exchange 
rate flexibility, improved competitiveness and lower 
cost of doing business. 

As stated earlier, Chinese, Malaysian, and Vietnamese 
filament yarn producers are heavily involved in 
dumping of their product with the abolishing of 5% 
Regulatory Duty. The average C&F price at which PFY 
has been imported has decreased month over month 
reflecting a dire need for the NTC to intervene in order 
to save the local PFY industry before it is totally wiped 
out in the country.

The future of an Industry lies in the favorable business 
and protection policies of the government aimed at 
curbing injurious practices of illegal imports into the 
country, which are hazardous for the domestic industry.

Brent prices may go up because of widespread 
perceptions that the global oil market is tightening 
and could run short in the next few months given 
U.S. sanctions restricting crude exports from Iran.  Oil 
markets would struggle for direction, as uncertainty 
caused by the Iranian sanctions and escalating trade 
tensions between the U.S. and China persist.  Brent 
prices increase will also impact our raw material prices.

In recent past, the dollar hit an all time high against 
a basket of major currencies. State Bank of Pakistan 
imposed condition of hundred percent cash margin 

against some specific imports.  This will adversely 
affect our raw material imports, which are normally 
imported under usance LCs with 90 days deferred 
payments.

The Company’s branded products have a countrywide 
reach and serve majority of central Punjab consumers 
annually through a pan Punjab distribution network, 
focused on delivering a distinct consumer experience. 
Currently we have a network of distributors in various 
cities retailing our products. 

Since the last many years, an irony has emerged 
for the domestic industry of the country rendering 
its huge infrastructural investment almost unutilized. 
This critical area has been ignored by the concerned 
authorities, with the result that the domestic industry 
has not been able to deliver at the level of its potential. 
The country’s industry has the essential caliber, 
resources and professionalism to expand its facilities 
as per the growing needs of the consumers. Instead 
of boosting domestic products, goods from China, 
Malaysia, Vietnam and other regional countries 
have been allowed which have penetrated into our 
markets, thus crippling the domestic industry. Local 
industrialists are not adequately encouraged by way of 
incentivized policymaking, enabling them to channel 
further investments in developing infrastructure and 
creating employment opportunities.
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Pakistan will now have to undergo a long and painful 
economic restructuring program where the issues 
related to addressing inefficiencies in the energy 
supply chain and the revenue collection mechanism 
will be at the forefront. 

Risk Management
The Company is exposed to inherent uncertainties 
owing to the sectorial factors. A key factor in determining 
a company’s capacity to create sustainable value is 
the risks that the company is willing to take at strategic 
and operational levels and its ability to manage them 
effectively. Many risks exist in a Company’s operating 
environment and they emerge on a regular basis. 
The Company’s Risk Management process focuses 
on ensuring that these risks are identified on a timely 
basis and addressed. 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for 
overseeing the risk management process.  It ensures 
that decision-making is aligned with the Company’s 
strategies and risk appetite.  The Board receives 
regular updates on the key risks of the Company both 
in operational and financial areas.

Risk management process includes periodic review of 
all risks areas by the Chief Executive Officer and the 
senior management who are responsible for the day-
to-day risk management functions.

The Board advises the Management to further 
strengthen the overall risk management framework 
through a robust mechanism to estimate the potential 
impact of extreme events on the Company’s earnings, 
balance sheet, capital and liquidity.

The Board is overseeing the Company’s risk 
management process and controls and reviews the 
Company’s risk appetite and strategy relating to key 
risks, including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk, 
market risk, product risk and reputational risk, as 
well as the guidelines, policies and processes for 
monitoring and mitigating such risks.

The Committee operates as per its Charter approved 
by the Board and within the broad guidelines laid 
down in it. The Company has a Risk Management 

Policy in accordance with the provisions of the CCG 
Regulations, 2017. It establishes various levels of 
accountability and oversight within the Company, 
while vesting identified managers with responsibility 
for each significant risk.

The Board takes responsibility for the overall process 
of risk management in the organization. Through 
Enterprise Risk Management Program, business 
units and corporate functions address risks with an 
institutionalized approach aligned to the Company’s 
objectives. This is facilitated by our internal audit 
as well. The business risk is managed through 
cross-functional involvement and communication 
across business segments. The results of the risk 
assessment are thoroughly discussed with the Senior 
Management for necessary pre-emptive measures.
 
Board of Directors
Current members on the Board of Directors 
were elected on 27 October 2018.  The present 
composition is in conformity with the provisions of the 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017.  Since then there was no change 
in the composition of the Board of Directors.

The Board determines the appropriate characteristics, 
skills and experience for the Board as a whole and 
its individual members with the objective of having 
a Board with diverse backgrounds and experience 
in business, government, education and public 
service. Characteristics expected of all Directors 
include independence, integrity, high personal and 
professional ethics, sound business judgment, 
ability to participate constructively in deliberations 
and willingness to exercise authority in a collective 
manner. 

The remuneration policy of Non-Executive Directors 
including independent directors is in the process of 
being reviewed by the Board pursuant to overseeing 
the Board’s overall engagements in policy formulation 
and other Board functions.
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Remuneration of Directors:
Following are the aggregate amounts of salary / fee and 
other perquisites of the present Board for FY-2019:

 Directors’ category	 Number	 Aggregate amount	 Other perquisites
		   of salary and fee

 Executive Directors	 Two:	 NIL	 Chief Executive
 CEO	 (Chief		  Officer is drawing 	
 (Mr. Nooruddin	 Executive		  no salary since his 	
 Feerasta	 and one		  first appointment 	
	 Executive		  except company car.	
 Executive Director	 Director)		

 (Mr. Abdul Hayee)		  Rs.6.18 million	 Nil

 Independent Directors	 Two	 Nil	 Nil

 Non-Executive	 Four	 Nil	 Nil
 Directors

The Board periodically reviews the remuneration 
policy and a well-defined remuneration policy is in 
place.

Auditors
The present auditors, M/s. Qavi & Co., Chartered 
Accountants retire and being eligible offers themselves 
for re-appointment.

The Board has received recommendations from its 
Audit Committee for re-appointment of M/s. Qavi 
& Co., Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the 
Company for the year 2019-20.

Dividend
The Board has recommended a final cash dividend 
@ 10% i.e. Re.1.00 per share of Rupees ten each.

Pattern of Shareholding
A statement showing the pattern of shareholding 
in the Company as at 30 June 2019 appears on
page 94.

Other Disclosures
The Company’s performance has been sufficiently 
elaborated in earlier parts of this Report of the 
Directors, however, the specific disclosure of some 
mandatory constituents are explained hereunder 
in terms of the provisions of Section 227 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and Rule 
Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited:

-	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2019, 
following were the directors of the Company.  Total 
number of Directors: 8 (7 male and one female).

            Category		       Names

  a)  Independent Director	 Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany
	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani

  b)  Non-Executive Directors	 Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
	 Mrs. Amyna Feerasta
	 Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta 

  c)  Executive Directors	 Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta
	 Mr. Abdul Hayee

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee	

1.	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani	 Chairman	 (Independent Director)

2.	 Mr. Muhammad	 Member	 (Non-Executive Director)
	 Rashid Zahir

3.	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member	 (Non-Executive Director)

H.R and Remuneration Committee

1.	 Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany	 Chairman	 (Independent Director) 

2.	 Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta	 Member	 (Chief Executive Officer) 

3.	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member	 (Non-Executive Director) 

-	 The principal activities of the Company remained 
consistent as manufacture and sale of synthetic 
products.  There were several developments during 
the year under review including infrastructural 
development and refurbishment of manufacturing 
lines with the aim of cost cutting. Strategic review 
was undertaken through monitoring of marketing 
trend for monthly production plans to ensure 
uninterrupted supply to meet the downstream 
demands.

-	 There has been no change in nature of the 
Company’s business.

-	 The external auditors have issued unqualified audit 
report for the year ended 30 June 2019.

-	 Rupali Polyester Limited is not a foreign company 
and has no holding or subsidiary company. 

-	 Pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2019 is 
annexed.

-	 The earning per share at the year end was Rs.1.61
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-	 The factors contributed towards main achievements 
during the year 2018-19 have been elaborated in 
this Report.  Several measures were taken during 
the year by the Company Management under 
guidance of the Board of Directors to serve as 
economic tools to make the unit profitable and we 
are moving forward gradually towards that direction 
as is evident from the financial results. The top and 
bottom line results during the year under review 
have shown profits and good turnaround.

-	 The Company’s historical debt repayments and 
servicing record is excellent and its Management 
never allowed a situation to arise that may cause 
default in repayment of debt.

-	 The Company’s internal controls are strong. 
The Company has implemented sound systems 
and controls in all spheres of operational and 
commercial activities with check & balance for 
regular monitoring. The purchase procedures 
and SOPs are also sound and the checks and 
controls are ensured at every stage. This system 
is functioning smoothly and successfully with no 
element of delay in meeting requirements as per the 
delivery schedules. The SOPs of various activities 
are regularly reviewed and bottlenecks removed for 
improvements where required for smooth system 
functioning.

-	 There has occurred no material changes and 
commitments materially affecting the financial 
position of the Company between the end of the 
financial year of the Company i.e. 30 June 2019 
and the date of the report.  However, the results will 
be under pressure in coming periods by virtue of 
Pak Rupee devaluation against US Dollar.

-	 The Company’s business that suffered setback in 
previous few years has now come out of the losses 
and is moving steadily towards revival and growth.  
The overall unfavorable market conditions include 
dumping of low-cost PSF, PFY and cloth from the 
regional countries. 

-	 The Company’s business operations have no 
adverse impact on environment. The outlets of 
wastewater, emissions, gases etc. are kept under 
the environmental protection parameters and 
procedures and controls.

-	 The Company fulfills its Corporate Social 
Responsibilities by way of donations to various 
deserving educational institutions and hospitals.

-	 There have been no significant and material orders 
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and the 
Company’s operations. 

 
Related Party Transactions
In compliance with Section 208 and 209 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and Related Parties 
Regulations, 2018 the Company executes 
transactions with following associated companies, 
related parties in its ordinary course of business:

    - Rupafil Limited
    - Rupali Nylon (Pvt.) Limited
    - Soneri Bank Limited

The shareholders in its meeting held on 27 October 
2018 had given approval through special resolution for 
transactions to be consummated with related parties 
during the year 2018-19.  The Board of Directors has 
duly approved/ratified the transactions made in FY 
2019 with above related parties.

Disclosure Requirements as per Code of 
Corporate Governance Regulations 
Good Corporate Governance has always been the 
focal point of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
We are happy to report that your Company by the 
Grace of ALLAH, meets the standard set in the 
guidelines for good corporate governance and is in 
compliance with the relevant regulations. At Rupali 
Polyester Limited we ensure that we evolve and 
follow the corporate governance guidelines and 
best practices sincerely to not just boost long-term 
shareholder value, but to also respect minority rights. 
We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose 
timely and accurate information regarding our 
financials and performance, as well as the leadership 
and governance of the Company. In accordance with 
the vision set by the Board, the Company aspires to 
be the global Polyester industry benchmark for value 
creation and corporate citizenship. 

The Company expects to realize its Vision by taking 
such actions as may be necessary in order to achieve 
its goals of value creation, safety, environment and 
people. The Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance 
of conditions of Corporate Governance are made part 
of the Annual Report. 

During the year, the Company took several initiatives 
in various aspects of sustainability. At the strategic 
level, the Company embarked on a scenario planning 
exercise to envision the future, looking at economic, 



Rupali Polyester Limited22 

regulatory and stakeholder scenarios in order to 
develop our next vision and action plans. In order to 
drive the various aspects of sustainability in a more 
focused way, the Company put together consolidated 
governance mechanisms with clear demarcation of 
roles between the Board, its Committees and the 
Management. During the year, the capital projects for 
environment have progressed significantly. Following 
specific statements are being given hereunder: 

The Company has initiated steps of energy 
conservation and continue taking measures to 
improve energy efficiency. Our environment research 
team in R&D has been working on projects to reduce 
the environmental impact of our operations while 
improving resource efficiency. We are happy to report 
that the Company has gained a lot of improvement as 
a result of its efforts. 

Human Resource Management adopts key decisions 
not just with respect to Human Resource but 
businesses as a whole. It focuses on improving the 
way of life, work culture, employee engagement, 
productivity, effectiveness and efficiency. During the 
year, several employee centric policies were launched 
to cater to the needs of the work force and also to 
keep the Company up to date with external realities. 

Policies like adoption leave, physical and emotional 
well-being, and professional counseling services were 
launched in the interest of the employees’ changing 
needs. The Company initiated multiple actions to 
keep the workforce engaged. Actions are being 
taken to increase professional diversity, providing 
greater amenities for contractor workforce, improving 
employee skills and enhancing employee productivity. 
In addition, policies are being implemented to support 
affirmative action through training and enabling 
employment. 

We further state that:

•	 The Company has maintained its books of 
account as per statutory requirements. 

•	 The Company’s financial statements fully present 
state of affairs fairly, its results of operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity. 

•	 Appropriate accounting policies and applicable 
International Accounting Standards and 
International Financial Reporting Standards were 
applied in preparation of financial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable 

and prudent judgment and any departures 
there from have been adequately disclosed and 
explained.

•	 There is no inconsistency in these policies and 
no material departure from the best practices of 
corporate governance is allowed.

•	 These accounts have been prepared on going 
concern basis and the Management is satisfied 
regarding going concern status of the Company. 

•	 The system of internal controls of the Company 
is significantly sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored. 

•	 Plant operations remained normal throughout the 
year.  However, the dumped imports from China, 
Malaysia and Vietnam disturbed our sales targets 
which put adverse impact on our sales revenues.  
The reasons for increased finance costs have 
been highlighted and explained.

•	 There is no statutory payment on account of 
taxes, duties, levies and charges outstanding 
other than those in normal business related 
transactions.

•	 Company is neither in default nor likely to default 
any loans, short-term borrowings or any sort of 
debt instruments.

Investment of Provident Fund
The value of investment in Provident Fund Trust 
Account inclusive of profit accrued:

		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 30 June 2019	          30 June 2018
	  (Unaudited) 		  (Audited)
	     27,086		    25,076

Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance by 
each member
Total number of Audit Committee Meetings held 
during the year under review:			   4

Attendance by each Member:
1. Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani		 Chairman	 2
2. Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany	 Ex-Chairman	 2
3. Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir 	 Member	 4
4. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member 	 4
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H.R and Remuneration Committee Meetings
and Attendance by each member
Total number of HR and Remuneration Committee
Meetings held during the year under review: 	 4

Attendance by each Member:
1. Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany 	 Chairman 	 4
2. Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta 	 Member	 4
3. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta 	 Member	 4 

Board Meetings held and Attendance by each 
Director
Total number of Board Meetings held during
the year under review:				    5	
	
Attendance by each Director:
1. Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta
    (Chief Executive Officer) 			   5
2. Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
    (Non-executive) 				    5
3. Mr. Muhammad Ali Sayani			   2
4. Mrs. Amyna Feerasta				 
    (Non-executive)				    3
5. Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani				 
    (Independent & Non-executive)		  3
6. Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany
    (Independent & Non-executive) 		  5
7. Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
    (Non-executive)				    5
8. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta
    (Non-executive) 				    5
9. Mr. Abdul Hayee
    (Executive) 					     5 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Your Company attaches high priority to its social 
responsibilities and is committed to the highest 
standards of corporate behavior.  The Company’s CSR 
responsibilities are fulfilled through selective monetary 
contributions in the areas of health care, education, 
environmental protection, water and sanitation, child 
welfare, infrastructure development and other welfare 
activities subject to availability of surplus funds.  Our 
CSR activities include contributions to hospitals 
and welfare programs engaged in assisting under-
privileged patients, students and children of various 
special needs. 

Code of Conduct
As a part of continuous adherence to best practices 
of corporate governance, Rupali Polyester Limited 
believes in widely disseminating its values and ethics 
for strict adherence by all employees, contractors, 
suppliers and others associated with business of the 

Company. Our commitment to encouraging ethical 
and responsible practices is demonstrated by the 
fact that the Company had a comprehensive Code 
of Conduct in place well before the introduction of 
this requirement in 2002. The Code of Conduct of 
the Company is reviewed periodically and we ensure 
compliance at all levels. Furthermore, upon joining 
the Company, all employees are required to read and 
understand the Code of Conduct for strict compliance, 
which demonstrates Company’s best corporate 
governance in practice.

Whistleblowing Policy
Rupali Polyester has a well-defined Whistleblowing 
Policy. Any cases where the Code of Conduct has 
been violated, and to help facilitate strict adherence 
to it, employees have access to a whistleblowing 
protocol. Through this program, any employee can 
confidentially report suspected breach of ethics and 
Code of the Company by way of anonymity. Any 
complaints if received are thoroughly investigated to a 
logical end. The Board Audit Committee as well as the 
Board oversees this process.

Health, Safety and Environment
The Company is strongly committed towards all aspects 
of maintaining a safe and healthy environment, for our 
business operations as well as affiliated organizations.

The Company fully recognizes safety as a key 
component of operational excellence and gives 
vital importance to the training of employees and 
contractors. We also try to enhance safety awareness 
and actively incorporate best practices for the 
industries overall operational set-up.

Our commitment to environment, health and safety is 
manifested in our operational activities as no major 
accident was reported in the year 2019.

There was no reportable occupational illness from our 
employees or contracted manpower in 2019.  Proper 
fumigation and treatment against viral spread is 
regularly carried out at plant site and offices.

Labor Management Relations
Like previous years, cordial relations were maintained 
between the Management and the labor force. We 
wish to extend our appreciation for their dedication 
and hard work demonstrated at every level for the 
progress and growth of the Company.
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Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements for the year 2019 prepared 
as per provisions of Companies Act, 2017 were 
approved and authorized for their issuance by the 
Board of Directors on 21 September 2019.

Approval of the Directors’ Report and Compliance 
Statement
The Board of Directors approved the Directors’ Report 
and statement of compliance on 21 September 2019 
and authorized their issuance.

A Note of Gratitude
The Directors wish to express their appreciation for 
the cooperation provided by the Ministries of Finance, 
Revenue and Economic Affairs, Industries and 
Production, Communication, and Commerce and Textile. 
We would also like to convey our gratitude to the Federal 
Board of Revenue and Government of the Punjab for 

their cooperation. We appreciate the patronage and 
confidence placed in the Company by the Development 
Financial Institutions and commercial banks. We are 
thankful to our valued customers and expect growing 
business relationships with them. To our stakeholders, 
we are grateful for their faith and trust in the Company.  
We place on record our appreciation of the contribution 
made by employees at all levels. Our resilience to meet 
challenges was made possible by their hard work, 
solidarity, co-operation and support.

On behalf of the Board

Nooruddin Feerasta		  Shehzad Feerasta
Chief Executive Officer		  Director

Lahore:
21 September 2019
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Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Ninth Annual 
General Meeting of Rupali Polyester Limited (“the 
Company”) will be held at Rupali House, 241-
242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore on 
Saturday, 26 October 2019 at 10:00 a.m. to transact 
the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1)	 To confirm the minutes of Thirty Eighth Annual 

General Meeting of the Company held on 27 October 
2018.

2)	 To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited 
Accounts of the Company together with the Directors 
and Auditors Reports thereon for the year ended

	 30 June 2019.

3)	 To approve payment of final cash dividend
	 @ 10% i.e. Re.1.00 per share for the year ended
	 30 June 2019 as recommended by the Board.

4)	 To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year
	 2019-20 and to fix their remuneration. The retiring 

Auditors M/s. Qavi & Co., Chartered Accountants 
being eligible have offered themselves for 
reappointment.	

Special Business:
5)	 (a)	 To approve transactions conducted with 

associated companies (related parties) for the year 
ended 30 June 2019 by passing the following special 
resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT the following transactions 
conducted with associated companies (related 
parties) for the year ended 30 June 2019 be and are 
hereby ratified, approved and confirmed:

 Name	              Description of Transaction	  Amount in Rs. ‘000

Purchase	     Sale	    Others
 Rupafil Limited       Sale/purchase of goods			 

	              and services		    	   

 Rupali Nylon (Pvt.)  Purchase of goods	   		

 Limited.	                   and services	

 Soneri Bank Limited   Profit on Bank deposits	               - 	             -	 2,250

	 (b) To authorize Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company to approve transactions with Related 
Parties for the year ending 30 June 2020 by passing 
the following special resolution with or without 
modification:

	 “RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to approve the 
transactions to be conducted with Related Parties on case 
to case basis during the year ending 30 June 2020.

Notice of Meeting

1,397,148    479,792	        -

         186	             -	
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	 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT these transactions 
shall be placed before the shareholders in the next 
general meeting for their ratification/approval.”

Other Business
6)	 To transact such other ordinary business as may be 

placed before the meeting with the permission of the 
Chair.

			    	      By order of the Board

Lahore:			      S. Ghulam Shabbir Gilani
21 September 2019	     Company Secretary

Notes:

1)	 Share transfer books of the Company will remain 
closed from 22 October 2019 to 26 October 2019 
(both days inclusive) for determining the entitlement 
of dividend.  This dividend will be paid to shareholders 
whose names shall be appearing in the Register 
of Members of the Company on 21 October 2019.  
Transfers received at the Share Registrar Office 
M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, 
Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi – 75400 before close of 
business on 21 October 2019 will be treated in time for 
the purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.

2)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting 
may appoint another member as his or her proxy to 
attend and vote. Proxies in order to be effective must 
be received at the registered office of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the 
meeting. Proxy Form attached.

3)	 Accountholders/sub-accountholders holding book 
entry securities of the Company in Central Depository 
System (CDS) of Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited (CDC) who wish to attend the Annual 
General Meeting are requested to please bring their 
original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) 
or original passport with a photocopy duly attested 
by their bankers alongwith participant’s I.D. number 
and their account number in CDS for identification 
purposes. 

	 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ 
resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature 
of the nominee together with the original proxy form 
duly filled in must be received at the registered office 
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time 
of holding the meeting. The nominees shall produce 
their original CNIC or original passport at the time of 
attending the meeting for identification purpose.

4)	 Submission of copy of CNIC (Mandatory):
	 In order to comply with the directives of the Securities 

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 
issued from time to time, the shareholders are 
requested to kindly send photocopy of their CNICs 
to us immediately at our address “Rupali House,

	 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, 
Lahore-54000 or our Share Registrar M/s. THK 
Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, 
P.E.C.H.S, Karachi. The shareholders who have 
already provided CNIC number to us need not re-
submit it unless the CNIC is expired. Corporate 
shareholders are requested to provide their National 
Tax Numbers (NTN). In case of non submission of 
copy of CNIC all future dividend warrants may be 
withheld.

5)	 Circulation of Audited Financial Statements 
through email

	 Members are hereby informed that the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO 
No. 787(I)/2014 dated 8 September 2014 has allowed 
companies to circulate annual balance sheet and 
profit and loss account, auditor’s report and directors 
report etc. (Audited Financial Statements) along with 
notice of annual general meeting (Notice) to their 
members through e-mail subject to compliance with 
the conditions outlined in the said Notification. In this 
regard a written notice may please be sent to us as 
soon as possible at our following email addresses 
and for convenience of the members, a standard 
request form has also been placed on the Company’s 
website. 

	 Company Secretary:	 shabbir.gilani@rupaligroup.com 
	 THK Associates:	 aa@thk.com.pk 

6)	 E-Voting
	 Members can exercise their right of vote under 

applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) 
Regulations, 2018.  If required, the Company will 
facilitate as per the procedure laid down in said 
regulations. 

 
7) 	 E-Dividend
	 In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 

of the Companies Act, 2017, a listed company (if 
declares dividend) is required to pay cash dividend 
to the shareholders ONLY through electronic mode 
directly into the Bank Accounts designated by the 
entitled shareholders.

 
	 In order to receive dividends directly into their 

bank accounts, shareholders are requested to fill 
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in Dividend Mandate Request form available at 
Company’s website www.rupaligroup.com and sent 
it duly signed along with copy of CNIC to the Shares 
Registrar of the Company in case of physical shares.  
In case the shares are held in CDC, then the Form 
must be submitted directly to shareholders’ broker / 
participant / CDC Account Services.

8)	 Bank Mandate with International Bank 
Account Number (IBAN) for payment of 
Cash dividend

	 Under the provision of Section 242 of the Companies 
Act, 2017, Securities & Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP) has directed all listed companies 
to pay cash dividends only through electronic mode 
directly into the bank accounts of the shareholders.  
Therefore, please provide us your Bank Mandate 
details including International Bank Account Number 
(IBAN) alongwith a copy of valid CNIC at the earliest, 
if not already provided to:

1.	 your respective CDC Participant / CDC Investor 
Account Services (in case your shareholding is in 
book entry form) or

2.	 our Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) 
Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., 
Karachi - 75400 (in case your shareholding is in 
physical form).

	 In case of non provision of bank mandate with IBAN 
Bank Account detail, cash dividend will be withheld to 
comply with SECP directions issued vide Circular No. 
18 of 2017 dated 01 August 2017 directing that all 
dividend payments will effect from 1 November 2017 
shall be paid through electronic mode only.

9)	 Withholding Tax on Dividend	
    (i)	 The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 

2019 has made certain amendments in withholding 
tax provisions by substituting the definition of “filers” 
with “Active Taxpayer List” (ATL) whereby different 
rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax 
on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. 
These tax rates are as under:

	 a)  For persons appearing in Active Taxpayers List 15%
	 b)  For persons not appearing in Active Taxpayers 	

	  List 30%

	 All the shareholders whose names are not entered 
into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the 
website of FBR, are advised to make sure that their 
names are entered into ATL. 

   (ii)	 The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts 
are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) 
updated with their respective participants, whereas 
corporate physical shareholders should send a 
copy of their NTN certificate to the Company or its 
Share Registrar i.e. THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd. The 
shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, 
as the case may be, must quote company name and 
their respective folio numbers. 

	 In case of Joint account, each holder is to be treated 
individually as having or not his/their name(s) on 
ATL of FBR and tax will be deducted on the basis of 
shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified 
by the shareholder, in writing as follows, to our Share 
Registrar, or if no notification, each joint holder shall 
be assumed to have an equal number of shares.

                       Principal Shareholding             Joint Shareholding
  Folio/CDC	 Total	 Name &	 Shareholding	 Name &	 Shareholding
 Account No.	 Shares	 CNIC No.	 proportion	 CNIC No.	 proportion
				   (No. of Shares)		  (No. of Shares)

10)	 Transmission of Annual Financial 
Statements through CD/DVD/USB

	 SECP through an SRO No.470(I)/2016 dated 31 May 
2016 has allowed companies to circulate their annual 
balance sheet, profit and loss account, auditors’ 
report and directors’ report (Annual Report) to the 
members through CD/DVD/USB at their registered 
addresses.  In view of this the Company has sent its 
Annual Report to the shareholders in the form of CD.  
Any Member desiring the copy of Annual Report in 
printed form may send request on standard request 
form placed under the Investor Information sections 
in the website www.rupaligroup.com.

11)	 Consent for the Facility of video-link
	 Members may participate in the meeting via video-

link facility.  If the Company receives a demand 
from members holding an aggregate 10% or more 
shareholding residing at a geographical location 
outside Lahore to participate in the meeting through 
video link at least 7 days prior to the date of meeting, 
the Company will arrange video link facility in that city.

	 In this regard, Members who wish to participate 
through video-link facility, should send a duly signed 
request as per the following format to the Registered 
Address of the Company.
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	 I/we__________________of__________________

being a member of Rupali Polyester Limited holder 

of____________ordinary share(s) as per Registered 

Folio / CDC Account No.___________hereby opt for 

video link facility at___________.

					     __________________

					      Signature of Member

12)	 Availability of Audited Financial Statements 
on Company’s Website

	 The audited financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 30 June 2019 have been made available on 
the Company’s website www.rupaligroup.com 

13)	 Requirement of Companies (Postal Ballot) 
Regulations, 2018

	 Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 
2018, for any other agenda items subject to 
the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, members present in person, 
through video-link or by proxy, and having not less 
than one-tenth of the total voting power can also 
demand a poll and exercise their right of vote through 
postal ballot, that is voting by post or through any 
electronic mode, in accordance with requirements and 
procedure contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

14)	 Unclaimed Dividends
	 As per the provision of Section 244 of the Companies 

Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by 
the Company which have remained unclaimed/unpaid 
for a period of three years from the date on which it 
was due and payable are required to deposited with 
the Commission for the credit of Federal Government 
after issuance of notices to the shareholders to file 
their claim.  In this regards, a notice to shareholder was 
sent at their provided addresses and subsequently 
final notice was published in newspapers having 
nationwide circulation.

	 Shareholders are requested to ensure that their claims 
for unclaimed dividend and shares are lodged timely.  
In case, no claim is lodged with the Company in the 
given time, the Company shall proceed to deposit 
the unclaimed/unpaid amount and shares with the 
Federal Government pursuant to the provision of 
Section 244(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

15)	 Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC 
Accounts

	 In accordance with the requirement of Section 72 of 
the Companies Act, 2017 every existing company 
shall be required to replace its physical shares with 

book-entry form in a manner as may be specified 
and from the date notified by the Commission, 
within a period not exceeding four years from the 
commencement of this Act.  The shareholders having 
physical shares may open CDC sub-account with any 
of the broker or investor account directly with CDC to 
place their physical shares into scrip-less form.

Shareholders are requested to notify any change in 
their addresses immediately.

Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2017
This statement sets out the material facts concerning 
the special business to be transacted at the Thirty 
Ninth Annual General Meeting of Rupali Polyester 
Limited to be held on 26 October 2019.

Agenda Item No. 5 (a) – Transactions carried 
out with associated companies (related parties) 
during the year ended 30 June 2019 to be 
approved by way of Special Resolution
The transactions carried out in normal course of 
business with associated companies (related parties) 
were being approved by the Board of Directors as 
recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly 
basis pursuant to Section 208 of the Companies Act, 
2017 and Rule 15 (1) of the Listed Companies (Code 
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and 
Rule 5.6.19(b) of the PSX Regulations.

However, the majority of Company Directors were 
interested in these transactions due to their common 
directorship and holding of shares in the group 
companies, the quorum of directors could not be 
formed for approval of these transactions pursuant 
to Section 207 of the Companies Act, 2017 and 
therefore, these transactions have to be approved by 
the shareholders in General Meeting.

Agenda Item No. 5 (b) – Authorization to Chief 
Executive Officer for Related Party Transactions 
to be carried out with associated companies 
during the year ending 30 June 2020 to be 
approved by way of special resolution	  
The Company shall be conducting Related Party 
Transactions with associated companies during the 
year ending 30 June 2020 in the normal course of 
business.  The majority of Directors are interested 
in these transactions due to their common 
directorship and shareholding in the associated 
companies.  Therefore, these transactions with 
associated companies have to be approved by the 
shareholders.
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In order to ensure smooth supply during the year, 
the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer to approve transactions with associated 
companies on case to case basis for the year ending 
30 June 2020.  The summary of commercial reasons, 
nature and scope of Related Party Transactions are 
explained in the proposed resolution.  However, these 

transactions shall be placed before the shareholders 
in the next General Meeting for their approval/
ratification.

The Directors are interested in these resolutions to be 
extent of their common directorship and shareholding 
in the associated companies.
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The Company convenes AGM in accordance with the Companies 
Act, 2017. The AGM serves as an interactive platform to engage 
with the shareholders and listen to their views and valuable 
suggestions.

The Company, in compliance with applicable laws, periodically 
uploads its quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports on its 
website. These reports are sent to its shareholders in printed 
form / CD. The Company being, listed, also communicates its 
results to Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company updates its shareholders about price sensitive 
information through Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Briefing to shareholders and financial analysts about Company’s 
performance, challenges progress on upcoming expansion 
and the future growth outlook, in line with the guidelines of the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Engagement with Investors and 
Shareholders

We are continuously exploring new opportunities to create further value for the benefits of our shareholders 
and investors.

Being a highly significant Company, we enforce the importance of satisfying our investors by employing the 
following techniques:

Activity	 Description	  Frequency

 Annual General									                  Annual
 Meeting

 Quarterly, Half-yearly									          Quarterly/Annual
 and Annual Reports

 Price Sensitive									                    As and when required
 Information

 Corporate Analyst
 Briefing 

We believe in strict compliance of applicable laws and regulations and have an open door policy towards all 
regulators. To remain compliant, we promptly and regularly file all applicable statutory returns and forms with 
regulators.

As advised by the 
PSX vide Notice 
No. PSX/N-654 
dated 23 May 2019



Rupali Polyester Limited44 

Statement of Compliance
with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017
Name of Company		  - Rupali Polyester Limited
Year Ended			   - 30 June 2019

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are eight (8) as per the following:

		  a. Male:		 7
		  b. Female:	 1

2.	 The composition of board is as follows:

			    Category		  Names

		   a) Independent Directors	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani
						      Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany

		   				    Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
		   b) Non-Executive Directors	 Mrs. Amyna Feerasta
						      Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
						      Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta

		   c) Executive Directors		  Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta
						      Mr. Abdul Hayee

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including 
this company. 

4.	 The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

5.	 The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved 
or amended has been maintained. 

6.	 All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board/ 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations. 

7.	 The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board. 

8.	 The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance 
with the Act and these Regulations.  This will be further reviewed by the Board from time to time.

9.	 The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program as per the Regulations. 

10.	 The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations. 

11.	 CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12.	 The board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 
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a)	 Audit Committee:

1.	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani	 Chairman
2.	 Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir	 Member
3.	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member 

b)	 HR and Remuneration Committee:

1.	 Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany	 Chairman
2.	 Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta	 Member
3.	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member 

c)	 Nomination Committee (not applicable)
d)	 Risk Management Committee (not applicable).

13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee 
for compliance. 

14.	 The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following: 
 

a)	 Audit Committee, quarterly (or more if required to convene)
b)	 HR and Remuneration Committee, quarterly (or more if required to convene)

15.	 The board has set up an effective internal audit function.  The head of audit and other audit staff are suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company. 

16.	 The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of 
the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and 
all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the ICAP.

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except 
in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed 
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

18.	 We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nooruddin Feerasta 									         Shehzad Feerasta
Chairman										          Director

Lahore: 21 September 2019
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of RUPALI POLYESTER 
LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 
40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the 
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations 
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review 
is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board of Director’s statement on internal control covers all risks and controls, 
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions 
and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only 
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried 
out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that 
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Lahore										           	               Qavi & Co.
Dated: 21 September 2019							              Chartered Accountants
							        	 Engagement partner: Syed Saim Raza Zaidi

Independent Auditors’ Review Report
to the Members on Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the annexed financial statements of RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, statement 
of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement 
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2019, and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. Following are key audit matters:

	 Sr. No.	 Key Audit Matters	 How the matters were addressed in our report
	
	 1		  Amongst others, following key audit procedures were performed:

•	 Obtained an understanding of the company’s processes and 
related internal controls for revenue recognition and on a sample 
basis, tested the effectiveness of those controls.

•	 Considering the appropriateness of revenue recognition policy, 
including recognition and classification criteria for trade and 
other discounts and comparing it with the applicable accounting 
standards.

•	 Assessed the management process for revenue recognition 
and also applied cut-off procedures to ensure that revenue 
recognition is in accordance with IFRS - 15. 

•	 Performed walkthrough tests over revenue process.

•	 Performed test of details on a sample basis with underlying 
documents by inspecting and comparing customer orders, 
delivery challans, invoices and other related documents. Also 
matched/tallid sales invoices with sale tax returns.

Independent Auditors’ Report to the 
Members

REVENUE 
	 RECOGNITION:

As disclosed in note 
28 of these annexed 
financial statements. 
During the current 
financial year, the 
Company has reported 
revenue of Rs. 9.054 
billion that witness 
a 50% increase, as 
compared to last year. 

We identified revenue 
recognition as key audit 
matter because it is one 
of the key performance 
indicators of the 
Company, manifests an 
inherent risk and also 
exhibited significant 
increase. 
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	 Sr. No.	 Key Audit Matters	 How the matters were addressed in our report

•	 Performed detailed analysis regarding first time application 
of IFRS – 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” and 
evaluated its;

a.	 impact on preparation of the annexed financial statements, 
and,

b.	 relevance with the Company.

•	 Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure as required under 
applicable financial reporting framework.

	 2	 STOCK-IN- TRADE:	 Amongst others, following key audit procedures were performed:

•	 Attended and observed physical inventory count to 
ascertain the condition and existence of inventories.

•	 Tested the effectiveness of Company’s controls over 
inventory valuation and its consumption.

•	 Reviewed the management estimates regarding future 
prices to ascertain net realisable value (NRV) of finished 
goods and cross matched these with post-yearend selling 
prices.

•	 Tested reasonableness of NRV calculations to ascertain 
that inventories are not overstated and are being measured 
at lower of;

a.	 cost or 
b.	 net realisable value.

•	 Inspected management inventory reports to ascertain the 
cost of inventories and cross matched these on a sample 
basis with underlying invoices and traced the same in bank 
statements.

•	 Reviewed the adequacy of disclosure as required under 
applicable financial reporting framework.

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

As stated in note 10 of 
these annexed financial 
statements. The stock-
in-trade has been 
valued at Rs: 873.093 
million. 

Stock in trade formed a 
significant part of these 
financial statements 
as this involves 
significant estimates 
and judgements 
in determining net 
realisable value.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
	
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017);

b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, Statement of other comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns;

c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company’s business; and

d)	 zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Syed Saim Raza Zaidi.

Lahore										           	  Qavi & Co.
Dated: 21 September 2019							        Chartered Accountants
							        	 Engagement partner: Syed Saim Raza Zaidi
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Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
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Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2019	 2018	

ASSETS	
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 	
Property, plant and equipment	 6 	  3,295,511 	  3,201,449 
Investment property	 7 	  462,500 	  437,500 
Long-term deposits 	 8 	  4,396 	  4,396 
		   3,762,407 	  3,643,345 
CURRENT ASSETS	
Stores, spares and loose tools	 9 	  873,121 	  879,235 
Stock-in-trade	 10 	  873,093 	  824,593 
Trade debts	 11 	  73,362 	  12,698 
Loans and advances	 12 	  13,571 	  24,039 
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments	 13 	  265 	  265 
Other receivables	 14 	  342,546 	  365,813 
Taxation - net	 15 	  43,842 	  131,274 
Cash and bank balances	 16 	  32,388 	  14,482 
		   2,252,188 	  2,252,399 
		   6,014,595 	  5,895,744 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES	
Authorised share capital	
35,000,000 (2018: 35,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each	  	 350,000 	  350,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital	 17 	  340,685 	  340,685 
Reserves	 18 	  359,557 	  341,886 
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land	 19 	  1,719,056 	  1,719,056 
		  2,419,298 	  2,401,627 
		  2,419,298 	  2,401,627 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	
Long-term financing	 20 	  94,370 	  143,179 
Staff retirement benefits	 21 	  165,594 	  152,458 
Deferred taxation	 22 	  279,723 	  257,962 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 23 	  –   	  985 
		   539,687 	  554,584 
CURRENT LIABILITIES	
Trade and other payables	 24 	  1,345,791 	  690,140 
Short-term borrowings	 25 	  1,564,985 	  2,146,943 
Accrued mark-up		   47,971 	  28,558 
Unclaimed dividend		   1,509 	  1,111 
Current portion of long-term borrowings	 26 	  95,354 	  72,781 
		   3,055,610 	  2,939,533 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 27 	
		  6,014,595	  5,895,744 

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.	
	 	

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  		     Amjad Rahil
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			           Chief Financial Officer
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Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2019	 2018	

Sales 	 28	  9,053,741 	  6,044,111 

Cost of sales	 29	  (8,562,629)	  (5,680,917)

Gross profit	  	 491,112	 363,194 

	

Selling and distribution expenses	 30	  (24,368)	  (17,632)

Administrative and general expenses	 31	  (166,407)	  (162,885)

Other expenses	 32	  (22,168)	  (33,638)

Other income	 33	  64,494 	  85,649 

Operating profit		  342,664	  234,689 

Finance cost	 34	  (168,362)	  (118,867)

Profit before taxation		  174,302	  115,822 

Provision for taxation	 35	  (119,327)	  (51,269)

Profit after taxation		  54,975	  64,553 

	
(Rupees)	

Earnings per share - basic and diluted	 36	 1.61  	  1.89 

	

	

Appropriations have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.	

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.	 		
	

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  		     Amjad Rahil
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			           Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 30 June 2019
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Rupees in thousand	  	 2019	 2018	

Profit after taxation		   54,975   	  64,553 

Other comprehensive income	
 Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss:	
 - Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation		   (4,558)	  –   

 - Deferred tax credit relating to remeasurement of defined
   benefit obligation”		   1,322 	  –   

 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss:	
  - Surplus on revaluation of freehold land		   –   	  –   

Other comprehensive loss for the year		   (3,236)	  –   

Total comprehensive income		  51,739	  64,553 

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.			   	
			 

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  		     Amjad Rahil
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			           Chief Financial Officer

Statement of other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2019
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Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2019	 2018	

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	
Cash generated from operations	 37	  1,081,343 	  196,365 
	 Finance costs paid		   (148,949)	  (117,596)
	 Income tax paid		   (8,812)	  (12,265)
	 Staff retirement benefits paid		   (17,180)	  (11,498)
Net cash inflow from operating activities		   906,402 	  55,006 
	
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	
	 Capital expenditure		   (251,950)	  (380,126)
	 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		   3,735 	  –   
	 Profit / Mark-up received		   2,547 	  919 
Net cash outflow from investing activities		   (245,668)	  (379,207)
	
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES	
	 Long-term financing		   (48,809)	  (40,700)
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   21,586 	  9,192 
	 Dividend paid		   (33,670)	  –   
Net cash outflow from financing activities		   (60,893)	  (31,508)
	
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		   599,841	  (355,709)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   (2,132,461)	  (1,776,880)
	 Effect of exchange rate fluctuations	   	  23	 128
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		   (1,532,597)	  (2,132,461)

Cash and cash equivalents	
Cash and bank balances	 16	  32,388 	  14,482 
Short-term borrowings	 25	  (1,564,985)	  (2,146,943)

			    (1,532,597)	  (2,132,461)

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

	

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  		     Amjad Rahil
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			           Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2019
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Balance as on 01 July 2017	  	 340,685 	  71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (1,458,282)	 1,719,056 	 2,337,074 
	
Total Comprehensive income	
- Profit for the year ended 30 June 2018		   –   	  –   	  –   	  64,553 	  –   	  64,553 
- Other comprehensive income for
  the year ended 30 June 2018		   –   	  –   	  –   	  –   	  –   	  –
		   –   	  –   	  –   	  64,553 	  –   	  64,553 
	

Balance as on 30 June 2018		  340,685 	  71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (1,393,729)	 1,719,056 	 2,401,627 
	

Balance as on 01 July 2018	  	 340,685 	  71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (1,393,729)	 1,719,056 	 2,401,627 
	
Total Comprehensive income	
- Profit for the year ended 30 June 2019		   –   	  –   	  –   	 54,975   	  –   	 54,975   
- Other comprehensive income for
  the year ended 30 June 2019					     (3,236)	  	 (3,236)
- Dividend paid		   –   	  –   	  –   	  (34,068)	  –   	  (34,068)

		   –   	  –   	  –   	  17,671	  –   	  17,671
	
Balance as on 30 June 2019	  	 340,685 	  71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (1,376,058)	 1,719,056 	 2,419,298
	
	
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  		     Amjad Rahil
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			           Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2019

(note-17)
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1	 Legal status and nature of business	
RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED (“the Company”) was incorporated in Pakistan on 24 May 1980 as a 
Public Limited Company and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of 
the Company is situated at 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore. The production plant is 
situated at 30.2 KM Lahore - Sheikhupura Road, Sheikhupura. The regional office is situated at 101 -105 
1st floor, Gul Tower, I.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture 
and sale of polyester products.

2	 Significant transactions and events affecting the Company’s financial position and performance	
All significant transactions and events that have affected the Company’s statement of financial position 
and performance have been discussed below and adequately disclosed in the notes to these financial 
statements, where ever necessary.	

a)	The Exchange rate of USD to PKR has increased from PKR 121.73 as at 30 June 2018 to PKR 163.76 
as at 30 June 2019;

b)	During the year, the Company has made significant investments in non current assets to enhance 
production facilities.	

c)	 For further disclosure about the Company’s performance please refer to the directors’ report.	
	

3	 Significant accounting information and policies	
	
3.1	 Statement of compliance	

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and the reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprises of:	

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting 		
	 Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and	

-Provisions of and the directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017	

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.	
	

3.2	 Basis of measurement	
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except freehold 
land and  staff retirement benefits.	
	

4	 New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations	
4.1	 Amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations which are effective for 	
	 the current year	

The Company has adopted the following accounting standards, the amendments and interpretations 
of IFRSs which became effective for the current year:	
	 IFRS - 2	 Share based payments	
	 IFRS - 4	 Insurance contracts	
	 IFRS - 9	 Financial instruments	
	 IFRS -15	 Revenue from Contracts with Customers	
	 IAS - 40	 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)	
	 IFRIC - 22	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration	
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The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did 
not have any material effect on the financial statements except for IFRS 9 - “Financial Instruments” 
and IFRS 15 “ Revenue from contracts with customers”. The impact of the adoption of these 
standards is given below:	
	
IFRS - 15 “ Revenue from contracts with customers”	
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 - “Construction Contracts”, IAS 18 - “Revenue” and related 
Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless these 
contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step model to 
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised 
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer. 	

The standard requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the relevant 
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. 
The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the 
costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.	

The Company elected the modified retrospective method and applied the standard retrospectively 
to only the most current period presented in the financial statements. Accordingly, the information 
presented for the previous corresponding period has not been restated.	

The Company generates its revenue from sale of goods. The Company’s contracts with customers 
for the sale of goods generally include one performance obligation. The Company has concluded 
that revenue from sale of goods should be recognised at the point in time when control of the 
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Therefore, the adoption of 
IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the timing of revenue recognition and the amount of revenue 
recognised. 	

In general, the contracts for the sale of goods do not provide customers with a right of return and 
volume rebates. Accordingly, the application of the constraint on variable consideration did not have 
any impact on the revenue recognised by the Company.	

IFRS - 9 “Financial Instrument”	
IFRS - 9 “Financial Instruments” replaces IAS - 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and 		
Measurement”.	

Classification and measurement	
Except for certain trade receivables, under IFRS 9, the Company initially measures a financial asset 
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs.	

Under IFRS 9, debt financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit 
or loss (FVPL), amortised cost, or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The 
classification is based on two criteria: the Company’s business model for managing the assets; and 
whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ 
on the principal amount outstanding (the ‘SPPI criterion’)	

At transition date to IFRS 9, the Company has financial assets measured at amortised cost and 
equity instruments at FVOCI. The new classification and measurement of the Company’s financial 
assets are, as follows:	

a) ‘Debt instruments’ at amortised cost for financial assets that are held within a business model 
with the objective to hold the financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that meet 
the SPPI criterion.
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b)’Equity instruments’ at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition. 

This category only includes equity instruments, which the Company intends to hold for the 
foreseeable future and which the Company has irrevocably elected to classify upon initial recognition 
or transition. The Company classified its unquoted equity instruments as equity instruments at 
FVOCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment under IFRS 9. 
Under IAS 39, the Company’s unquoted equity instruments were classified as available for sale 
financial assets.	

The accounting for the Company’s financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under 
IAS 39. Accordingly, the adoption of IFRS 9 has no significant effect on the Company’s accounting 
policies related to financial liabilities.	

Impairment	

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for impairment 
losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking 
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the Company to record an allowance for 
ECLs for all loans and other debt financial  assets not held at FVPL.	

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in  accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted 
at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.	

For trade and other receivables, the Company has applied the standard’s simplified approach and 
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Company has established a 
provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. However, in certain 
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external 
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in 
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. The adoption of the 
ECL requirements of IFRS 9 did not result in any difference in the existing impairment allowances 
of the Company’s debt financial assets.	

	
4.2	 New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are 

effective for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018	

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting  
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the 
respective standard or interpretation:	

	
		  Effective date
Standards or interpretations	 (annual periods
		  beginning on or after)	

IFRS 3	 Business Combinations - Definition
	 of a Business (Amendments)	 01 January 2020 	

IFRS 3	 Business Combinations - Previously 
	 held interests in a joint operation	 01 January 2019	

IFRS 9	 Financial  Instruments - Prepayment
	 Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) 	 01 January 2019	
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		  Effective date
Standards or interpretations	 (annual periods
		  beginning on or after)	

IFRS 11	 Joint Arrangements: Previously held
	 interests in a joint operation	 01 January 2019	

IFRS 16	 Leases	 01 January 2019	

IAS 1/ IAS 8	 Definition of Material (Amendments)	 01 January 2020 	

IAS 12	 Income Taxes: Income tax consequences
	 of payments on financial instruments classified as equity	 01 January 2019	

IAS 19	 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
	 Settlement (Amendments)	 01 January 2019	

IAS 23	 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs
	 eligible for capitalisation	 01 January 2019	

IAS 28	 Long-term Interests in Associates and
	 Joint Ventures (Amendments)	 01 January 2019	

IFRIC 23	 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments	 01 January 2019	
	

5	 Significant accounting policies	
The significant accounting policies as set out below are consistently applied for all periods presented in 
these financial statements except for the changes as stated in note 4.1 to these financial statements.	

5.1	 Property, plant and equipment	

5.1.1	 Operating fixed assets	

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment 
losses, if any, except for freehold land and leasehold land which are stated at revalued 
amount.	
	
Depreciation on operating fixed assets is calculated on reducing balance method. Full 
month’s depreciation is charged in the month of addition, whereas no depreciation is 
charged in the month of disposal or deletion of assets. Rates of depreciation, which are 
disclosed in note 6, are determined to allocate the cost of an asset less estimated residual 
value, if significant, over its useful life.	
	
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if significant, at each 
reporting date.	
	
Disposal of assets is recognised when significant risks and reward incidental to the ownership 
have been transferred to buyers. Gains / losses on disposal of assets are recognised in 
income / expense in the year of disposal.	
	
Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised, 
net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in 
shareholder’s equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in 
other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; 
all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference 
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between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the 
statement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax, 
is reclassified from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to unappropriated 
profit.	
	
Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account as 
and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so 
replaced, if any, are retired.	

	
5.1.2	 Capital work-in-progress	

	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost and consists of expenditure incurred, advances 
made and other directly attributable costs in respect of operating fixed assets in the course 
of their construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets 
category as and when assets are available for use.	

	
5.2	 Impairment	

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment 
loss is recognized for the amount by which  the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs to sell and value in 
use. Impairment losses are charged to profit and loss.
	
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.	

	
5.3	 Investment property	

Property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both is classified as investment 
property. Investment property comprises freehold land and buildings. Investment property is carried 
at fair value.	
	
Investment property of the Company is valued by independent professionally qualified valuers. The 
fair value of investment property (in accordance with IFRS 13 - Level 3 input) reflects, among other 
things, rental income from current leases and other assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing investment property under current market conditions. The fair value of the investment 
property is based on professional assessment of the price that would be received to sell the property 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.	

	
If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has 
changed, any difference between the carrying amount and fair value of this item at the date of transfer 
is recognised in equity as a revaluation reserve for investment property. However, if fair value gain 
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the profit and loss account. Upon 
the disposal of such investment property, any surplus previously recorded in equity is transferred to 
retained earnings, the transfer is not made through profit and loss account.	
	
If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or stock-in-trade, it is reclassified as property, 
plant and equipment or stock-in-trade and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its 
cost for accounting purpose for subsequent recording.	
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5.4	 Financial instruments	

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.	
(i)	 Financial Assets	
	 Initial recognition and measurement	

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or 
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. 
With the exception of trade receivables, the Company initially measures a financial asset 
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price determined under 
IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value  
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and 
interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as 
the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company’s business model for 
managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate 
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting 
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised 
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 	

	
	 Subsequent measurement	

	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following 
categories:	

	
•	 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
•	 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains 

and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

•	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt 
instruments)	

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets 
at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

•	 The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

	
•	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.	
	
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.	
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	 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments) 	

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments 
as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the criteria of  
IFRS 9. 	

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of profit or 
loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right 
of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as 
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in 
OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment 
assessment.	
	
The Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this 
category.	
	

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 	

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, 
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or 
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are 
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 
in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal 
and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of 
the business model. Not with standing the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at 
amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be 
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or 
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.	
	
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial 
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss. 	
	
This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the 
Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed 
equity investments are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when 
the right of payment has been established. 	

	 Derecognition 	

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of 
financial position) when the asset’s rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Company 
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either

(a)	 the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b)	 the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained 
the risks and rewards of ownership	
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When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred 
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises 
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a 
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 	

	 Impairment of financial assets	

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. For trade receivables, the 
Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does 
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime 
ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment.”	

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in  
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive 
the  outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation 
of recovering the contractual cash flows.	

	
	 (ii) Financial liabilities	

	 Initial recognition and measurement	

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially 
at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.	
	

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss	

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.	
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	 Loans and borrowings	

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method (effective interest rate method). Gains and losses are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation activity.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as 
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 	

	 Derecognition	

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 	
	

	 (iii) Offsetting of financial instruments	

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis.	
	

	 Revenue from contracts with customers	

The Company is in the business of sale of goods i.e Polyester products. Revenue from 
contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods.	

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is 
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The normal credit term is 30 
to 90 days upon delivery	

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate 
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., 
right of returns, volume rebates). In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the 
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing 
components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).	

	 Variable consideration	

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the 
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the 
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until 
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue 
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is 
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subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of chemicals provide customers with a 
right of return and volume rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give rise to variable 
consideration. Contracts with the Company’s customers provide them with a right of return, 
price adjustments and volume rebates and are considered as variable consideration.	

	 Rights of return	

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified 
period. The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be 
returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the 
Company will be entitled. The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable 
consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration 
that can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, 
instead of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (and 
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products 
from a customer.	

	
	 Volume rebates	

The Company provides retrospective volume rebates (discounts) to certain customers once 
the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the 
contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the 
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely 
amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method 
for contracts with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts 
the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds 
contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining 
estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future 
rebates.	

	
	 Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return	

	 Right of return assets	

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be 
returned by customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, 
less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value 
of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any 
revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of 
the returned products.	

	 Refund liabilities	

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or 
receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects 
it will have to return to the customer.	

The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the 
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period. Refer to above accounting policy on 
variable consideration.	



Annual Report 2019 67

	 Cost to obtain a contract	

The Company pays sales commission to its sales agents for certain contracts. The Company 
has elected to apply the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which 
allows the Company to immediately expense sales commissions because the amortisation 
period of the asset that the Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.	

	 Accounts receivables	

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional 
(i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). 	

	 Performance obligations 	

The performance obligation is satisfied when the physical possession of the goods has passed 
to the customers for local sales whereas for export sales, performance obligation is satisfied 
when the risk and rewards in respect of the goods are transferred to the customer. Payment 
is generally received in advance or, if due, within 30 days from delivery.	

	 Profit on bank deposit	

Profit on bank deposit is accounted for using effective interest rate method.	

	 Dividend income	

Divided income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established	
	
5.5	 Advances, deposits and prepayments	

These are stated at cost which represents the fair value of consideration given.	
	

5.6	 Stores, spares and loose tools	

Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value. 
Items-in-transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus Other expenses paid thereon. 
Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items.	

	
5.7	 Stock-in-trade	

Stock-in-trade, except for those in transit, are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net 
realizable value. Items-in-transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus Other expenses 
paid thereon. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods comprises direct material, labour and 
appropriate manufacturing overheads.	
	
Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items.	

	
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost 
of completion and costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.	

	
5.8	 Trade debts and other receivables	

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at original invoice amount less provision for doubtful 
debts, if any. Provision for doubtful debt / receivables is based on the management’s assessment 
of customers’ outstanding balances and credit worthiness. Bad debts are written-off when 
identified.	
	
Other receivables and receivables from related parties are recognized and carried at cost.	
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5.9	 Cash and cash equivalents	

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise short-term borrowings, cash in hand and cash with 
banks in current and saving accounts.	

	
5.10	 Staff retirement benefits	

5.10.1	 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity	

The Company operates an Unfunded Defined Benefit Gratuity Scheme for all its permanent 
employees who attain the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. The 
provision is made on the basis of actuarial recommendation to cover the obligation under 
the scheme for all employees eligible to gratuity benefits. The Company conducts actuarial 
valuation after every two years and the latest actuarial valuation being carried out at 30 
June 2019	

	
5.10.2	 Defined contribution plan - Provident fund	

The Company operates an approved provident fund scheme which covers all permanent 
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and employees. 
Contribution is made by the Company at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.	

	
5.11	 Taxation 	

5.11.1	 Current	

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively 
enacted rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if 
any. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if 
any.	

	
5.11.2	 Deferred	

Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary 
differences arising at the reporting date, between the tax bases of assets and the liabilities 
and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which these can be utilised.	

	
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting date. In this regard, the effects on the deferred taxation of the portion 
of income expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the 
requirement of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan. Deferred tax is charged or credited to income.	

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised 
outside profit and loss account. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.	

	
5.12	 Compensated absences	

The Company accounts for compensated absences in the accounting period in which these are 
earned.	
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5.13	 Trade and other payables	

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are recognized and carried at cost which is the fair 
value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed to the Company.	

	
5.14	 Provisions	

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting future cash flows and appropriate discount 
rate wherever required. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
current best estimate.	

	
5.15	 Borrowings and borrowing cost	

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on an accrual 
basis and are disclosed as ‘Mark-up Accrued’ to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.	

	
All mark-up, interest and Other expenses on long-term and short-term borrowings are charged to 
profit in the period in which they are incurred.	
	
Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 
use are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended 
use.	

	
5.16	 Proposed dividend and transfer between reserves	

Dividend declared and transferred between reserves made subsequent to the reporting date are 
considered as non-adjusting events and are recognized in the financial statements in the period in 
which such dividends are declared / transfers made.	

	
5.17	 Transaction with related party	

All transactions with related parties are entered into at arm’s length basis as disclosed in note 40 
(as defined in Companies Act, 2017)	

	
5.18	 Foreign currency transactions and translation	

a)	 Functional and presentation currency	
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). 
The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency.	

	
b)	 Transactions and balances	

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the profit 
and loss account.
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	 (Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018

6.3	 Capital work-in-progress	
	 Civil works			    4,085 	  37,338 
	 Plant and machinery			    53,303 	  191,184 
	 Vehicles			    47 	  2 
	 Office equipment			    2,776 	  2,594 
	 Furniture and fixture			    3,809 	  2,901 
				     64,020 	  234,019 

6.4	 Particulars of immoveable assets the Company are as follows	
	 Location	 Address	 Usage of property	 Total area 
				    (sq.ft)
	 Lahore	 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road	 Head office	 54,994 
	 Lahore	 Property Number S.42 - R/3/1 Race Couse Road	  Investment property	 27,225
	 Sheikhupura	 30.2 KM Lahore - Sheikhupura Road	  Production plant	 5,249,524 
	

	 (Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018

7	 Investment property	
	 Fair value at the beginning of the year			   437,500 	  400,000 
	 Fair value gain during the year	 7.1		   25,000 	  37,500 
	 Fair value at the end of the year			   462,500 	  437,500 
	

7.1	 The fair value of investment property was determined at 
30 June 2019 by an independent valuer having relevant 
professional qualifications. The fair value was determined on 
the basis of professional assessment of the price that would 
be received to sell the property in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, in 
accordance with level 3 input of IFRS 13. The forced sale 
value as at 30 June 2019 amounts to Rs. 397.375 million. 
(2018 : Rs. 371.875 million)	

	
8	 Long-term deposits	
	 Security deposits			    4,396 	  4,396 
	  			   4,396 	  4,396 
9	 Stores, spares and loose tools	
	 Stores -	
	 - In hand			   127,907 	  106,581 
	
	 Spares -	
	 - In hand			   727,117 	  764,812 
	 - In transit			    11,321 	  1,245 
				    738,438 	  766,057 
	 Loose tools -	
	 - In hand			    6,776 	  6,597 
				    873,121 	  879,235 
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	 (Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
10	 Stock-in-trade	
	 Raw and packing materials -	
	 - In hand			   258,223 	  456,789 
	 - In transit			    –   	  77,588 
				    258,223 	  534,377 
	 Work-in-process			    67,261 	  45,180 
	 Finished goods	 10.1		  547,609 	  245,036 
				    873,093 	  824,593 

10.1	 Finished goods of Rs. 300.614 million  (2018: Rs. 0.635 
million) are being carried at net realisable value and an 
amount of Rs. 5.554 million (2018: Rs. 0.740 million) has 
been charged to cost of sales.	

	
11	 Trade debts	
	 Considered good - Unsecured			    73,362 	  12,698 
				     73,362 	  12,698 

11.1	 No allowance for expected credit loss has been
	 recognised in these financial statements in
	 respect of trade debts.	

	
12	 Loans and advances - Considered good	
	 Loans due from Non-Executives	 12.1		   2,036 	  2,034 
	 Advances due from -	
	 - Staff against expenses			    304 	  324 
	 - Suppliers and contractors			    11,285 	  21,735 
				     11,589 	  22,059 
	
	 Allowance for ECL relating to loan and advances due
	 from non executive			    (54)	  (54)
				     13,571 	  24,039 
	

12.1	 Loans have been granted under staff loan policy, as temporary financial assistance, to staff. These 
are secured against the gratuity payable to employees and are recoverable in 12 equal monthly 
installments. Therefore, all of the amount is recoverable within 1 year as of reporting date. These 
loans carry mark-up at the rate of 14.00% (2018: 14.00%) per annum. The maximum aggregate 
amount of loans and advances due from non-executives at the end of any month during the year 
was Rs. 2.441 million (2018: Rs. 2.638 million). The chief executive officer and directors have not 
taken any loan or advance from the Company.	
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	 (Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
13	 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments	
	 Deposits - Considered good	
	 Margin on bank guarantees			    265 	  265 
	  			   265 	  265 
14	 Other Receivables	
	 Considered good	
	 Due from related parties	 14.1		   41,941 	  41,958 
	 Insurance claim receivable			    –   	  15 
	 Sales tax refundable			   281,857 	  304,500 
	 Others			    3,744 	  2,641 
				    327,542 	  349,114 
	 Considered doubtful	
	 Sales tax refundable	 14.4		   26,805 	  28,497 
	 Others			    15,004 	  15,007 
	 Allowance for ECL on other receivables			   (26,805)	  (26,805)
				    342,546 	  365,813 
	

14.1	 Maximum amount due from associated companies at the 
end of any month during the year was Rs. 46.870  million 
(2018: Rs. 41.577 million). The amount due from associated 
companies are in the normal course of business and are 
interest free.	

	
14.2	 Other receivables due from related parties, which are
	 neither past nor impaired, includes the following:	

	 Spintex Limited			    41,910 	 41,910 
	 Rupafil Limited			    –   	  17 
	 Rupafil PowerGen (Pvt.) Limited			    31 	  31 
				     41,941 	  41,958 
	

14.3	 The aging analysis of other receivable due from
	 associated companies is as follows:	

	
	 Upto 1 month			    –   	  448 
	 1 to 6 months			    1,696 	  –   
	 More than 6 months			    40,245 	  41,510 
				     41,941 	  41,958 
	

14.4	 This includes, among others an amount of Rs. 24.204 million (2018: Rs. 24.204 million), which has 
been created towards payments made under protest to Sales Tax Department to avail amnesty 
offered vide SRO 575 (I) / 1998 dated 12.06.1998 and SRO 679 (I) / 1999 dated 12/06/1999.	
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	 (Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
15	 Taxation - net	
	 Opening balance			   131,274 	  179,754 
	 Tax payments / adjustments during the year - net of refund			    8,238 	  11,999 
				    139,512 	  191,753 
	 Provision for taxation	 35		  (95,670)	  (60,479)

	  			   43,842 	  131,274 
	

The income tax assessment of the company has been finalized up to 
Tax Year 2018 (accounting year ended 30 June 2018). Return for the 
tax year 2018 has been duly filed.	

	
16	 Cash and bank balances	
	 Balance with banks	
	 - Current accounts			    24,869 	  9,881 
	 - PLS Accounts	
 	      - Local currency	 16.1		   7,329 	  219 
	      - Foreign currency	 16.2		   30 	  22 
				     32,228 	  10,122 
	 Cash in hand	
	 - Local currency			    81 	  3,896 
	 - Foreign currency			    79 	  464 
				     160 	  4,360 
				     32,388 	  14,482 
	

16.1	 The balances in PLS accounts carry mark-up rate ranging 
between 4.00% to 10.25% (2018: 3.40% to 6.30%) for local 
currency and nil (2018: nil) for foreign currency.	

	
16.2	 Cash at banks in PLS accounts include US $ 181.12
	 (2018: US $ 181.12).

17	 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital	
	        2019	              2018

	 Ordinary shares	 Ordinary shares
	 of Rs. 10 each	 of Rs. 10 each
	
	  9,690,900 	  9,690,900 	 - Shares allotted for
  			     consideration paid in cash		   96,909 	  96,909 
	  19,933,895 	  19,933,895 	 - Shares issued against
			     non-repatriable investment		  199,339 	  199,339 
	  4,443,719 	  4,443,719 	 - Shares allotted as bonus shares		  44,437 	  44,437 
	  34,068,514 	  34,068,514 				     340,685 	  340,685 
	

17.1	 The controlling shareholders of the Company have a right of first refusal in the event that Company 
divest shares and all the shareholders rights are in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. 
The latest election of directors was held in 2018 and the number of notices received U/S 159(4) 
of Companies Act, 2017 to contest election as director was not more then the number as fixed

	 U/S 159(1) of Companies Act, 2017. Hence no voting took place.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
as at 30 June 2019	
(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018

18	 Reserves	
	 Capital reserve	
	  - Share premium	 18.1	  71,490 	  71,490 
	
	 Revenue reserves	
	  - General reserve		   1,664,125 	  1,664,125 
	  -Dividend paid		   (34,068)	  –   
	  - Accumulated loss		   (1,341,990)	  (1,393,729)
			    288,067	  270,396 
			    359,557	  341,886 
	

18.1	 This reserve can be utilised by the Company only for the purpose specified in section 81 of the 
Companies Act, 2017.	

	
18.2	 Shares held by related parties of the Company	

	 		  2019		  2018
	 Name of share holders	  Number of shares 	

	 Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta		   500 	  500 
	 Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir		   500 	  500 
	 Mrs. Amyna Feerasta		   500 	 500
	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani		  939,833	 472,022
	 Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany		   21,345 	  21,345 
	 Mr. Shehzad Feerasta		   490 	  490 
	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta		   10 	  10 
	 Mr. Abdul Hayee		   1,150 	  1,150 
	 Feerasta Senior Trust		  17,859,290 	  12,179,991 

	
19	 Surplus on revaluation of freehold land	

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company carried out revaluation of one of its freehold land  which 
represents an area measuring nine hundred and sixty four kanals situated at Sheikhupura Road, Lahore. 
M/s Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt.) Limited carried out the valuation exercise, based on their assessment 
and prevailing market conditions of real estate in that area. They were of the opinion that fair market rate 
of the plot was assessed to be Rs. 1.5 million per kanal at that date with forced sales value of Rs. 1.20 
million per kanal.	

	
19.1	 This surplus includes Rs. 293.388 million that relate to revaluation of a land, which was subsequently 

classified as Investment Property. The remaining surplus of Rs.1,425.688 million relate to free hold 
owner occupied land. Had this freehold land not been revalued, the caring amount of the land 
would have been Rs. 21.172 million. 	

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
20	 Long-term financing	
	 From banking companies - secured	
	 - Utilized under mark-up arrangement	 20.1	  188,739 	  214,769 
	 Current portion shown under current liabilities	 26	  (94,369)	  (71,590)

	 Non-current portion		   94,370 	  143,179 
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20.1	 The Company had obtained a term finance facility from MCB Bank Limited for the purpose of 
import of plant and machinery, spare parts and related civil works. The facility is secured by way of 
first charge over plant and machinery and land aggregating to Rs. 967 million. It carries a mark- up 
at a rate of 6 month KIBOR + 0.5% to be reset on biannual basis. The loan was repayable in 10 half 
yearly instalments and four instalments are outstanding as at reporting date.	

	
21	 Staff retirement benefits	

21.1	 Defined benefit plan - gratuity	

	 The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who attain the minimum 
qualifying period for entitlement to gratuity.	

	
	 Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation conducted in accordance with IAS-19 (Revised) 

-’Employee Benefits’ as of 30 June 2019, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.	

21.1.1	 Principal actuarial assumptions	
	 Following are a few important actuarial assumptions used in valuation:	

			   2019	 2018
Discount rate (%) per annum			   12.5	 7.25
Expected rate of salary increase in future years (%) per annum		  11.5	 6.25
Average expected remaining working life time of employees (years)		  6	 7
Average duration of liability (years)			   5	 6

	
The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:	

a)	 Mortality risk	
	 The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the 

beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the benefit	

b)	 Investment risks	
	 The Company is not managing any plan asset	

c)	 Final salary risks	
	 The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what 

was assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount 
increases similarly.	

d)	 Risk of insufficiency of assets	
	 The Company is exposed to risk of insuffinciency of funds at the time of 

payment.	

e)	 Withdrawal risk	
	 The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a 

risk to the benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.	
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	

21.1.2	 The amount recognised in the balance sheet	
Present value of defined benefit obligation	 21.1.3	 		 165,594 	  152,458 
Less: fair value of plan assets				     –   	  –   
Defined benefit liability at the end of the year				    165,594 	  152,458 

	
21.1.3	 Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation	

Present value at the beginning of the year				    152,458 	  138,587 
Charge for the year - Profit and loss account	 21.1.4			  25,758 	  25,369 
Charge for the year - Other comprehensive income	 21.1.5			  4,558 	  –   
Benefits paid during the year	  			  (17,180)	  (11,498)
Present value at the end of the year				    165,594 	  152,458 

	
21.1.4	 Amount chargeable to profit or loss for the year	

Current service cost				     15,328 	  15,946 
Net interest cost				     10,430 	  9,423 
				     25,758 	  25,369 

	
21.1.5	 Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability	

Actuarial losses due to changes in demographic assumptions			    –   	  –   
Actuarial losses due to experience assumptions				     4,558 	  –   
				     4,558 	  –   

	
21.1.6	 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:	

Cost of sales		  29		   15,328 	  16,647 
Selling and distribution expenses		  30		   522 	  436 
Administrative and general expenses		  31		   9,909 	  8,286 
				     25,759 	  25,369 

	
21.1.7	 Sensitivity analysis	
	 The calculation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The 

following table summarises how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the reporting period would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a change in respective 
assumptions by one percent.	

	  Effect of 1%	 Effect of 1%	
(Rupees in thousand)	 increase  	 decrease 
	

Present value in case of discount rate				    156,858 	  175,540 
Present value in case of future salary growth				    175,540 	  156,710 

	
	 The above sensitivity analysis are based on the changes in assumptions while holding all 

other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the 
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of defined benefit obligation 
to significant assumptions the same method (Projected Unit Credit Method) has been applied 
when calculating the liability recognised within the balance sheet.	

21.2	 Defined contribution plan - provident fund	

	 The company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefits of all its permanent employees 
under the title of “Rupali Polyester Limited - Employees’ Provident Fund Trust”. The fund is 
maintained by the Trustees and all the decisions regarding investments and distribution of income 
etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Company.	
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21.2.1	 The Trustees have intimated that the size of the Fund at the year end was Rs. 27.085 million 
(2018: Rs. 25.662 million)	

	
21.2.2	 As intimated by the Trustees, the cost of investments made at the year end was Rs. 27.050 

million (2018 Rs. 25.287  million), 99.87% of the total fund size (2018: 98.54%). Since the 
aforementioned funds are invested in PLS accounts therefore, the fair value of the investments 
equals its cost.	

	
21.2.3	 According to the Trustees, investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance 

with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017.	

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
22	 Deferred taxation - net	

	 Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences	
	 - Accelerated tax depreciation allowance		   281,331 	  258,592 
	 Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences	
	 - Defined benefit obligation		   (1,322)	  –   
	 - Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		   (286)	  (630)
			    279,723 	  257,962 
	

22.1	 Deferred tax has been computed at a rate of 29% , enacted 
tax rate in accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
and Finance Act, 2019. The Company has unutilized tax 
losses of Rs: 1.614 million on which no deferred tax asset 
has been recognised in these financial statements.	

	
23	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	

	 Minimum lease payments	
	 - payable within one year		   1,020 	  1,313 
	 - payable after one year but before five years		   –   	  1,020 
	  		  1,020 	  2,333 
	 Future financial charges	
	 - payable within one year		   35 	  122 
	 - payable after one year but before five years		   –   	  35 
			    35 	  157 
	 Present value of minimum lease payments	
	 - payable within one year		   985 	  1,191 
	 - payable after one year but before five years		   –   	  985 
			    985 	  2,176 
	
	 Current portion shown under current liabilities	 26	  (985)	  (1,191)
	 Non-current portion		   –   	  985 
	

23.1	 Future minimum lease payments have been discounted at an implicit interest rates ranging from of 
7.40% to 7.48 % (2018: 7.40% to 7.48%) per annum to arrive at their present values. Rentals are 
payable in advance in monthly instalments. Taxes, repairs, replacements and insurance costs are 
to be borne by the Company. The lease contains a bargain purchase option exercisable at the end 
of lease and it is reasonably certain than the Company will exercise this option at maturity.	
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
24	 Trade and other payables	

	 Creditors		   1,174,450 	  588,082 
	 Accrued liabilities		   124,542 	  73,210 
	 Advances from customers		   5,849 	  8,261 
	 Retention money		   2,262 	  2,322 
	 Payable to provident fund		   614 	  338 
	 Income tax deducted at source		   599 	  201 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund	 24.1	  18,086 	  13,731 
	 Workers’ welfare fund	 24.2	  1,465 	  2,415 
	 Other payables		   17,924 	  1,580 
			    1,345,791 	  690,140 
		

24.1	 Workers’ profit participation fund	
	 Balance at the beginning of the year			    13,731 	  7,508 
	 Add: Allocation for the year			    9,275 	  6,223 
	 Less: Amount paid to the trustees of the fund 			    (4,920)	  –   
	 Balance at the end of the year			    18,086 	  13,731 
	
	
24.2	 Workers’ welfare fund	
	 Balance at the beginning of the year			    2,415 	  –   
	 Add: Charge for the year			    1,893 	  2,415 
	 Less: Amount paid			    (2,843)	  –   
	 Balance at the end of the year			    1,465 	  2,415 

	
25	 Short-term borrowings	

	 From banking companies - secured	
	 Running finances under mark-up arrangements from banks	 25.1 & 25.2	 1,201,027 	  1,557,985 
	 From related party - unsecured	
	 Interest free loan	 25.3		  363,958	  588,958 
	  		  1,564,985 	  2,146,943 
	

25.1	 The aggregate finance facilities available from various commercial banks amounted to
	 Rs. 1,681.242 million (2018: Rs. 1,681.242 million). These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 

6.93% to 13.29% (2018: 6.54% to 8.30%) p.a. and are secured against hypothecation charge 
on current assets of Rs. 2,089.265 million (2018: Rs. 2,089.265 million) and promissory notes of

	 Rs. 1,798.729 million (2018: Rs. 1,690.100 million) respectively. Maximum amount utilised during 
the year ended 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs.1,601.389  million (2018: Rs. 1,570.010 million).	

25.2	 The facilities for opening letter of credit from various commercial banks as at 30 June 2019 
aggregates to Rs. 2,150.000 million (2018: Rs. 1,914.060 million) of which the amount remained 
unutilised at the year-end was Rs. 615.409 million (2018: Rs. 1,344.651 million).	

25.3	 The Company availed interest free and unsecured loan from Alnu Trust holding 26.17% (2018: 
17.83%) of the total share capital of the Company. During the year, none of the loan has been 
obtained (2018: Rs. 318.958 million) and Rs. 255.00 million (2018: Rs. 70 million) has been repaid. 
Maximum amount utilised during the year ended 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 588.958 million 
(2018: Rs. 627.958 million). The loan is repayable on demand by the trust.	
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
26	 Current portion of long-term borrowings	

	 Long-term financing	 20		   94,369 	  71,590 
	 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 23		   985 	  1,191 

				     95,354 	  72,781 
27	 Contingencies and commitments	

27.1	 Contingencies:	

27.1.1	 Guarantees issued to different organizations in the normal course of business amounted to
	 Rs. 82.459 million (2018: Rs. 75.314  million).	

27.1.2	 No outstanding guarantees were given on behalf of related parties as at 30 June 2019 and 
2018.	

27.1.3	 Various court cases involving immaterial amounts are pending against the Company but no 
provision has been made in these financial statements because management and legal advisors 
are of the view that no amount would be payable in respect of these cases.	

27.2	 Commitments:	

27.2.1	 Contracts for capital expenditure commitments outstanding as at 30 June 2019 amounted to
	 Rs. 182.235 million (2018: Rs.349.386 million).	

27.2.2	 Commitments against irrevocable letters of credit as at 30 June 2019 amounted to  Rs. 1,535.000 
million (2018: Rs. 579.409 million).

(Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018

28	 Sales 	

	 Gross sales - local		   9,126,957 	  6,070,383 
	 Less:	
	 - Commission / discount 		   (37,829)	  (23,992)
	 - Sales tax		   (35,387)	  (2,280)
			    (73,216)	  (26,272)

			    9,053,741 	  6,044,111 
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018

29	 Cost of sales	

	 Raw and packing materials consumed			  7,388,148 	  4,457,057 
	 Stores and spares consumed			    86,829 	  67,343 
	 Salaries, wages and amenities	 29.1		   327,029 	  290,662 
	 Fuel and power			    873,252 	  616,132 
	 Repair and maintenance			    35,687 	  26,019 
	 Running and maintenance of vehicles			    18,372 	  16,735 
	 Insurance			    16,414 	  16,920 
	 Depreciation	 6.2		   138,398 	  132,273 
	 Rent, rates and taxes			    2,136 	  2,058 
	 Other expenses			    1,018 	  1,539 
	 Manufacturing cost			   8,887,283 	  5,626,738 

	 Add: Opening Work-in-Process			    45,180 	  29,981 
	 Less: Closing Work-in-Process		   	  (67,261)	  (45,180)
	 Cost of goods manufactured			   8,865,202 	  5,611,539 

	 Add: Opening Finished Goods			    245,036 	  314,414 
	 Less: Closing Finished Goods			   (547,609)	  (245,036)
	  			  8,562,629 	  5,680,917 
	

29.1	 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs. 15.328 million 
(2018: Rs. 16.647 million) in respect of staff retirement 
benefits and Rs. 1.072 million (2018: Rs 1.067 million) in 
respect of provident fund contribution.	

30	 Selling and distribution expenses	

	 Salaries, wages and amenities	  30.1 		   5,575 	  5,618 
	 Rent, rates and taxes			    226 	  245 
	 Electricity, gas and water charges			    244 	  190 
	 Postage, telephone and fax			    94 	  92 
	 Printing and stationery			    155 	  177 
	 Books and subscription			    72 	  44 
	 Running and maintenance of vehicles			    138 	  129 
	 Repair and maintenance			    80 	  57 
	 Travelling expenses			    385 	  267 
	 Entertainment			    168 	  115 
	 Insurance			    41 	  44 
	 Depreciation	  6.2 		   823 	  888 
	 Freight and forwarding			    16,362 	  9,761 
	 Sales promotion expenses			    5 	  5 
				     24,368 	  17,632 
	

30.1	 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs.0.522  million (2018: Rs.0.436 million) in respect of 
staff retirement benefits and Rs: 0.036 million (2018: Rs 0.042 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution. 	
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018
	
31	 Administrative and general expenses	

	 Salaries, wages and amenities	  31.1	  	 105,932 	  106,751 
	 Director’s remuneration			    6,248 	  5,729 
	 Rent, rates and taxes			    4,293 	  4,646 
	 Electricity, gas and water charges			    4,638 	  3,601 
	 Postage, telephone and fax			    1,783 	  1,741 
	 Printing and stationery			    2,941 	  3,355 
	 Books and subscription			    1,360 	  834 
	 Running and maintenance of vehicles			    2,622 	  2,457 
	 Repair and maintenance			    1,527 	  1,078 
	 Legal and professional charges			    6,206 	  5,624 
	 Travelling expenses			    7,310 	  5,074 
	 Entertainment			    3,186 	  2,186 
	 Auditors’ remuneration	  31.2 		   674 	  674 
	 Insurance			    800 	  862 
	 Advertisement			    685 	  628 
	 Depreciation	  6.2 		   15,646 	  16,869 
	 Miscellaneous expenses			    556 	  776 
				    166,407 	  162,885 
	

31.1	 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs. 9.909 million 
(2018: Rs. 8.286 million) in respect of staff retirement 
benefits and Rs. 0.684 million (2018: Rs. 0.791 million) in 
respect of provident fund contribution.	

	
31.2	 Auditors’ remuneration	
	 Audit fee			    525 	  525 
	 Certification and review			    85 	  85 
	 Taxation services			    64 	  64 
				     674 	  674 

32	 Other expenses	

	 Charity and donation	 32.1		   11,000 	  25,000 
	 Workers’ profit participation fund			    9,275 	  6,223 
	 Workers’ welfare fund			    1,893 	  2,415 
				     22,168 	  33,638 
	

32.1	 The details of the donations along with name of donee are as follows	
	 Patient Behbud Society for Aga Khan University Hospital (AKUH)	  		  6,000 	
	 Aga Khan Education Services	  		  5,000 	  20,000 
	 Aga Khan Hospital and Medical College			    –   	  5,000 
	  			   11,000 	  25,000 

	
32.2	 None of the directors and their spouses had any interest in the donee institution.	
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018

33	 Other income	

	 Income from financial assets	
	 Mark-up / Interest income	 33.1		   2,547 	  1,218 
	 Income from non-financial assets	
	 Scrap, waste and other sales - net	 33.2		   34,964 	  45,694 
	 Remission of liabilities			    1,232 	  106 
	 Profit on disposal of operating fixed assets			    713 	  –   
	 Gain on remeasurement of fair value of investment property	 7	  	 25,000 	  37,500 
	 Exchange gain	  		  23 	  128 
	 Misc. income			    15 	  1,003 
				     61,947 	  84,431 
	  			   64,494 	  85,649 

33.1	 Mark-up / Interest income	
	 Interest income from banks			    2,250 	  919 
	 Mark-up income on staff loan			    297 	  299 
				     2,547 	  1,218 
	
33.2	 Scrap, waste and other sales - net	
	 Gross sales			    38,605 	  50,489 
	 Less: Sales tax			    (3,641)	  (4,795)
				     34,964 	  45,694 

34	 Finance cost	

	 Mark-up on long-term financing			    21,381 	  16,945 
	 Mark-up on short-term borrowings			   146,081 	  100,775 
	 Mark-up on liabilities against assets subject to finance lease			    122 	  206 
	 Bank commission and Other expenses			    778 	  941 
				    168,362 	  118,867 
	
35	 Provision for taxation	

	 Current	
	 - for the year	 35.1		   95,670 	  60,479 
	 - prior years			    574 	  266 
				     96,244 	  60,745 
	 Deferred	
	 Origination and reversal of temporary differences			    23,083 	  (562)
	 Impact of change in tax rate	  35.3 		   –   	  (8,915)
				     23,083 	  (9,477)
				    119,327 	  51,268 
	

35.1	 This represents minimum tax at the rate of 1.25% of the turnover in accordance with section 113 of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (“the Ordinance”).	

	
35.2	 Tax charge for the year ended 30 June 2019 represent minimum tax payable under the Ordinance, 

and for this reason, relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been 
presented.	
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35.3	 Applicable income tax rate is 29% for the financial year 2019 on account of changes made to 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.	

	
35.4	 According to the management’s assessment, sufficient tax provision has been made in the 

Company’s financial statements. The comparison of tax provision according to the financial 
statements viz-a-viz tax assessment for last three years is as follows:	

	 		   Provision
			   according to
			   financial	 Tax assessment
	 (Rupees in thousand)		  statements		

	 2018			    60,479 	  61,053 
	 2017			    60,745 	  44,203 
	 2016			    8,568 	  13,531 

	

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018

36	 Earnings per share	

36.1	 Earnings per share - basic	
	 Profit for the year after taxation attributable to ordinary
	 shareholders (Rupees in thousand)			   54,975   	  64,553 
	
	 Weighted average ordinary shares in issue during
	 the year (No. of shares)	 17	 34,068,514 	  34,068,514 
	
	 Basic earnings per share (Rupees)			   1.61  	  1.89 
	
36.2	 Earnings per share - diluted	

	 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible 
instruments in issue as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 which would have any effect on the earnings per 
share if the option to convert is exercised.	
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2019		  2018

37	 Cash generated from operations	

	 Profit before taxation			  174,302   	  115,822 
	
	 Adjustments for non-cash and other items	

	 Depreciation	 6.2		  154,867 	  150,030 
	 Gain on remeasurement of fair value of investment property	 7		  (25,000)	  (37,500)
	 Provision for staff retirement benefits	 21.1	  	 25,759 	  25,369 
	 Profit on disposal of fixed assets			    (713)	  –   
	 Exchange gain	 32		   (23)	  (128)
	 Remission of liabilities	 33		   (1,232)	  (106)
	 Profit / Mark-up on bank deposits	 33.1		   (2,547)	  (919)
	 Finance cost	 34		  168,362 	  118,867 
	  			  319,473 	  255,613 
	  			  493,775 	  371,435 
	 Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes	

	 (Increase) / Decrease in current assets	

	 Stores, spares and loose tools	  		  6,114 	  (6,878)
	 Stock-in-trade			   (48,500)	  (99,112)
	 Trade debts			   (60,664)	  (11,237)
	 Loans and advances			    10,468 	  6,410 
	 Trade deposits and short term prepayments			    –   	  896 
	 Other receivables			    23,267 	  113,826 
				    (69,315)	  3,905 
	 Decrease / (Increase) in current liabilities	

	 Trade and other payables			   656,883 	  (178,975)
	 Cash generated from operations			  1,081,343 	  196,365

38	 Financial risk management	

38.1	 Financial risk factors	

	 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency 
risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk 
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise 
potential adverse effects on the financial performance.	

	
	 Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles 

for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange 
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All treasury related transactions 
are carried out within the parameters of these policies.	

	
	 (a)	 Market risk	

(i)	 Currency risk	
	 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions 
in foreign currencies.    	
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	 The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, 
primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD), Japanese Yen, Great Britain 
Pound and Euro. Currently, the Company’s foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to 
bank balances and the amounts receivable from / payable to the foreign entities.	

	
	 5% strengthening of Pak rupee against the following currencies at 30 June 2019 would 

have increased the equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below. The analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.	

	
(Rupees in thousand)		  Equity	 Profit or (Loss)

	 US Dollar			    1,348 	  1,899 
	 Thai baht			    11 	  15 
	 Japanese Yen			    19 	  27 
	 Euro			    1,483 	  2,088 
	 Chinese Yuan			    833 	  1,282 
	 Others			    930 	 1,310

	
	 5 % weakening of Pak rupee against the above currencies at reporting date would have 

had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above 
on the basis that all other variables remain constant.	

	
(ii)	 Interest rate risk	

	 Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 	

	
	 The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing assets. The Company’s 

interest rate risk arises from  short-term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates 
expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.	

	
	 At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial 

instruments was:	

(Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018

Fixed rate instruments	
Financial assets	
Loan against instalments		   2,036 	  2,034 
	
Financial liabilities	 		   –   	  –   
	
Net exposure			    2,036 	  2,034 
Floating rate instruments	
Financial assets	
Bank balances - savings accounts		   7,359 	  241 
	
Financial liabilities	
Long-term financing			    (188,739)	  (214,769)
Short-term borrowings		   (1,564,985)	  (2,146,943)
Liabilities against asset subject to finance lease 		  (985)	  (2,176)
	
Net exposure			    (1,747,350)	  (2,363,647)
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	 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments	

	 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would 
not affect profit or loss of the Company.	

	
	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments	

	 If interest rates on variable rate financial instruments, at the year end date, fluctuates by 
1% higher / lower, with all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would 
have been Rs. 1.461 million (2018: Rs. 0.942  million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of  
higher / lower interest expense on floating rate instruments.	

(iii)	 Other price risk	

	 Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from 
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific 
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial 
instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk since 
there are no investments in equity instruments traded in the market at the reporting date. 

	 The Company is also not exposed to commodity price risk since it does not hold any 
financial instrument based on commodity prices. 	

	
	 (b)	 Credit risk	

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk arises from deposits with 
banks, trade and other receivables. 	

(i)	 Exposure to credit risk	

	 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:	

(Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018
	
	 Trade debts			    73,362 	  12,698 
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables			   360,778 	  394,513 
	 Bank balances			    32,388 	  14,482 
	 Other receivables			   342,546 	  365,813 
	 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments			    265 	  265 

				    809,339 	  787,771 
	
	 There is no impairment loss of trade receivables as at June 30, 2019 and 2018.	
	
	 The management estimates the recoverability of trade receivables on the basis of financial 

position and past history of its customers based on the objective evidence that it will not 
receive the amount due from the particular customer. A provision for doubtful debts is 
established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect 
all the amount due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtors, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that 
the trade debt is impaired. The provision is recognised in the profit and loss account. The 
provision is written off by the Company when it expects that it cannot recover the balance 
due. Any subsequent repayments in relation to amount written off, are credited directly to 
profit and loss account. 	
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(ii)	 Credit quality of major financial assets	

	 The credit quality of major financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information 
about counterparty default rate:	

	
		   Rating 	 Rating  				  

		  agency	 2019	 2018
		  Short term	  Long term 		  (Rupees ‘000)	 (Rupees ‘000)

	
	 Habib Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA+	  PACRA 	 589	  617 
	 National Bank of Pakistan	 A1+	 AAA	  PACRA 	  19 	  9 
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited 	 A1+	 AA+	  PACRA 	  29 	  29 
	 Soneri Bank Limited	 A1+	 AA+	  PACRA 	  7,329 	  9,468 
					      7,966 	  10,123 

	
	Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counter parties 
and after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management 
does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the 
Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.	

(c)	 Liquidity risk	
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 

with financial liabilities.	
	
	 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable 

securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 
facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the Company’s business, the Board maintains 
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.	

	
	 Management monitors the forecasts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents on the 

basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits 
set by the Company. The Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash 
flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities, monitoring 
balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements, and 
maintaining debt financing plans.	

	
	 The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative 

financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows as the impact of discounting is not significant.	
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

	 At 30 June 2019	   	     Carrying     Less than	      One to	 More then
					          amount      one year	     five years	  five years

			            (Rupees ‘000)
	
	 Long-term financing	  188,739	  94,369 	  94,370 	  – 
	 Short-term borrowings 	 1,564,985 	  1,564,985 	  – 	  –
	 Trade and other payables	  1,345,791 	  1,345,791 	  – 	  – 
		   3,099,515 	 3,005,145 	  94,370 	  – 
	
	 At 30 June 2018	   	     Carrying     Less than	      One to	 More then
					          amount      one year	     five years	  five years

			            (Rupees ‘000)
	
	 Long-term financing	  214,769 	  71,590 	  143,179 	  – 
	 Short-term borrowings	  2,146,943 	 2,146,943 	  – 	  – 
	 Trade and other payables	  690,140 	  690,140 	  – 	  – 
		   3,051,852 	 2,908,673 	  143,179 	  – 	

	
38.2	 Fair value of financial instruments	
	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under 
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable 
or estimated using another valuation technique.	

	
	 As at June 30, 2019, all financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost 

except for investment in mutual funds, PIBs and Sukuk Bonds which are carried at their fair values. 
The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels:	

	 a)	 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).	

	 b)	 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
		  either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

	c)	 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable 
inputs) (level 3).	

(Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018

38.3	 Financial instruments by categories	
(a)	 Loans and receivables at amortised cost	

	Assets as per balance sheet	
	Long term security deposit			    4,396 	  4,396 
	Trade debts			    73,362 	  12,698 
	Advances, deposits and other receivables			   360,778 	  394,513 
	Cash and bank balances			    32,388 	  14,482 
				   470,924 	  426,089 
	

(b)	 Financial liabilities at amortised cost	
	Liabilities as per balance sheet	
	Long-term financing		   188,739	  214,769 
	Trade and other payables		   1,345,791 	  690,140 
	Short-term borrowings		   1,564,985 	  2,146,943 
	Unclaimed dividend		   1,509 	  1,111 
	Accrued mark-up		   47,971 	  28,558 
			   3,148,995 	  3,081,521 
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38.4	 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities	
	 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements 

approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each 
reporting date.	

38.5	 Capital risk management	
	 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.	

	
	 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends 

paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, obtain long term debt or 
sell assets to reduce debt.	

	
	 Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt 

levels and liquid assets and keeping in view future investments requirements and expectation of the 
shareholders.	

	 The Company manages capital by maintaining gearing ratio at certain levels. This ratio is calculated 
as long-term financing divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the 
balance sheet plus long-term financing.	

	 The gearing ratio of the Company is as follows:	

(Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018
	

			
Long-term financing - note 20		   94,370 	  143,179 
Total equity		   2,419,298 	  2,401,627 
Total capital		   2,513,668 	  2,544,806 
	
Gearing ratio		   0.038 	  0.056

39	 Remuneration of directors and executives	

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to the Chief 
Executive, Directors and the Executives of the Company are as follows:	

				                  	(Rupees in thousand)
			            Chief Executive	  	        Directors			   Executives

	 2019	 2018	 2019	  2018	 2019	 2018

Managerial remuneration	  –   	  –   	  3,957 	  3,805 	  25,792 	  28,178 

House rent	  –   	  –   	  1,187 	  1,141 	  7,760 	  8,453 

Utilities	  –   	  –   	  396 	  380 	  2,587 	  2,818 

Medical expenses	  –   	  –   	  396 	  380 	  2,587 	  2,818 

Retirement benefits	  –   	  –   	  –   	  –   	  351 	  459 

Others	  –   	  –   	  89 	  147 	  276 	  277 

	  –   	  –   	  6,025 	  5,853 	  39,353 	  43,003 

Relative number of 
person(s) whose
remuneration charged
in these financial statements 	  –   	  –   	  1 	  1 	  13 	  13 
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39.1	 The Company has one Chief Executive and Seven Directors as at 30 June 2019 (total 8 directors). 
However, during the year, no remuneration expense has been charged in these financial statements 
relating to the remuneration of Chief Executive.  The Chief Executive Officer and one of the 
executives of the Company are provided with cars for business and personal use.	

39.2	 No remuneration has been paid to executive and non-executive directors for attending company 
meetings during the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018.	

	
40	 Transactions with related parties	

The related parties comprises Associated Undertakings, Other Related Group Companies, Directors of the Company, 
Key Management Personnel and Defined Contribution Plan (Provident Fund). The Company in the normal course of 
business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to the related parties are shown 
under receivables and payables, amounts due from key management personnel are shown under receivables and 
remuneration of directors and key management personnel is disclosed in (note 39). Other significant transactions with 
the related parties are as follows:	

(Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018
	
40.1	 Details of transaction with related parties	

	 Name	 Nature of Relationship	 Nature of Transactions	

	 Rupafil Limited	 Associated Company	 - Sales of goods and services	  479,792 	  503,052 
				   - Purchase of goods and services	  1,397,148 	  594,124 
	
	 Rupali Nylon
	 (Pvt.) Limited	 Associated Company	 - Sales of goods and services	  –   	  –   
				   - Purchase of goods and services	  186 	  4,478 
	
	 Soneri Bank 
		 Limited	 Associated Company	 - Profit on Bank Deposits	  2,250 	  919 
	
	 Spintex Limited	 Related party	 - Sales of goods and services	  –   	  11 
				   - Goods received	  9 	  145 
	
	 Provident
	 Fund Trust 	 Defined contribution plan	 - Contribution to Provident Fund	  1,880 	  1,900 
	

40.2	 The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with Related Parties and 
Associated Undertakings are entered into at arm’s length prices using comparable un-controlled 
price method and cost plus method, wherever, appropriate. Further, contributions to the Defined 
Contribution Plan (Provident Fund) are made as per the terms of employment.	

40.3	 Particulars of transactions with worker’s profit participation fund and staff retirement benefit plans 
are disclosed in note 24.1 and note 24.2 respectively to these financial statements. 	
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
(Rupees in thousand)		  2019		  2018

40.4	 Amount due from / (outstanding to) related parties	
Rupafil Limited	
- Sale of goods and services		   –   	  17 
- Purchase of goods and services		   –   	  –   
Rupali Nylon (Pvt.) Limited	
- Sale of goods and services		   –   	  –   
- Purchase of goods and services		   –   	  –   
Spintex Limited	
- Sale of goods and services		   41,910 	  41,910 
- Purchase of goods and services		   –   	  –   
Rupafil PowerGen (Pvt.) Limited	
- Sale of goods and services		   31 	  31 
- Purchase of goods and services		   –   	  –   

	

40.5	 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have 
arrangements / agreements in place	

	
	 		  Aggregate %of
S. No.	 Company Name	 Basis of relationship	 shareholding in
			   Company

	
a.	 Rupafil Limited	 Common Directorship 	  N/A 
b.	 Rupali Nylon (Pvt.) Limited	 Common Directorship 	  N/A 
c.	 Spintex Limited	 Close Relationship between directors 	  N/A 
d.	 Rupafil PowerGen (Pvt.) Limited	 Common Directorship 	  N/A 
e. 	 Soneri Bank Limited	 Common Directorship 	  N/A 

	
	 (Metric Tons)		  2019		   2018

41	 Plant capacity and actual production	

	 Annual capacity (in three shifts)	
	 - Yarn		   10,100 	  10,100 
	 - Fiber		   12,000 	  12,000 
	 Actual production	
	 - Yarn		   14,490 	  10,735 
	 - Fiber		   24,005 	  20,843 

	
	 (Numbers)		  2019		   2018

	
41.1	 Number of employees	

Total number of employees as at 30 June		  1468	 1323
Average number of employees for the year ended 30 June		  1410	 1277
	
Number of factory employees as at 30 June		  1295	 1157
Average number of factory employees for the year ended 30 June	 1232	 1116



Annual Report 2019 93

42	 Post reporting date events - dividend	

The Directors in their meeting held on 21 September 2019 have recommended 10% (2018:10%) final cash dividend 
amounting to Rs: 34.069 million (2018: Rs. 34.069 million) in respect of year ended 30 June 2019. This recommended 
dividend is subject to approval of members and these financial statements do not include the effect of the final 
dividend which will be accounted for in the year in which it is approved.

43	 Date of authorization for issue	

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 21 September 2019 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.	
	

44	 General	

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated. However, implementation 
of IFRS - 9 has resulted a reclassification of Rs. 54,000, which is adequately disclosed in note - 12 to these financial 
statements. There is no other material or immaterial reclassification.

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  		     Amjad Rahil
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			           Chief Financial Officer

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019



Rupali Polyester Limited94 

Pattern of Shareholding
as at 30 June 2019

	 198	 1	  -	 100	 6,241

	 99	 101	  -	 500	 30,889

	 75	 501	  -	 1,000	 53,289

	 81	 1001	  -	 5,000	 203,779

	 21	 5001	  -	 10,000	 155,590

	 6	 10001	  -	 15,000	 77,701

	 2	 15001	  -	 20,000	 40,000

	 8	 20001	  -	 25,000	 187,689

	 1	 25001	  -	 30,000	 28,000

	 1	 30001	  -	 35,000	 31,000

	 1	 35001	  -	 40,000	 40,000

	 1	 50001	  -	 55,000	 53,000

	 1	 85001	  -	 90,000	 88,500

	 1	 95001	  -	 100,000	 100,000

	 1	 105001	  -	 110,000	 105,500

	 1	 110001	  -	 115,000	 115,000

	 1	 115001	  -	 120,000	 120,000

	 1	 120001	  -	 125,000	 124,000

	 1	 145001	  -	 150,000	 146,482

	 1	 205001	  -	 210,000	 209,490

	 1	 225001	  -	 230,000	 226,662

	 1	 230001	  -	 235,000	 233,161

	 1	 250001	  -	 255,000	 254,000

	 1	 285001	  -	 290,000	 286,000

	 1	 485001	  -	 490,000	 488,010

	 1	 580001	  -	 585,000	 584,500

	 1	 710001	  -	 715,000	 714,493

	 1	 815001	  -	 820,000	 816,483

	 1	 830001	  -	 835,000	 834,500

	 1	 935001		  940,000	 939,833

	 1	 3830001		  3,835,000	 3,834,290

	 1	 5080001		  5,085,000	 5,081,142

	 1	 17855001		  17,860,000	 17,859,290

	 515		  Total		  34,068,514

            Number of			               Shareho ld ing 	  			                 Total
          Shareholders	             From	        				       To	                      Shares Held
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Pattern of Shareholding
as at 30 June 2019
Categories of Shareholders	 Number	 Shares Held	 Percentage

Individuals	 488	 3,590,302	 10.54

Joint Stock Companies	 0	 0	 0.00

Investment Companies	 0	 0	 0.00

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and				  

  their Spouses and minor Children	 9	 1,079,328	 3.17

				  

Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta		  500	 0.00

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir		  500	 0.00

Mr. Yasseen M. Sayani		  939,833	 2.76

Mrs. Amyna Feerasta		  500	 0.00

Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany		  21,345	 0.06

Mr. Shehzad Feerasta		  490	 0.00

Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta		  10	 0.00

Mr. Abdul Hayee		  1,150	 0.00

Mrs. Laila Y. Sayani w/o Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani		  115,000	 0.34

Total:			   1,079,328	 3.17

					   

Executives

National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Deptt.	 5	 1,553,505	 4.56

Investment Corporation of Pakistan	 1	 200	 0.00

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

Public Sector Companies and Corporations				  

Banks, DFIs, NBFIs, Insurance Companies, Modaraba &

    Mutual Funds	 9	 1,070,457	 3.14

Foreign Investors	 0	 0	 0.00

Co-operative Societies	 0	 0	 0.00

Trusts		 3	 26,774,722	 78.59

Others			 

	

Total:		  515	 34,068,514	 100.00
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Name of Shareholders		  No. of Shares Held	 Percentage

Trustees Feerasta Senior Trust		  17,859,290	 52.42

Trustees ALNU Trust		  8,915,432	 26.17

Total:			   26,774,722	 78.59

Trading in Shares During 2018-19:

Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary made no sale/purchase of shares during the year

SHARE-HOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY

Pattern of Shareholding
as at 30 June 2019
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